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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Key Highlights

Science for a safer worid

Key highlights
Revenue: £387m {2018 £331m)
Adjusted EBITDA £106 1m (2018 £86 4m)
Number of employees (31 March 2,805 (2018: 2,626)
2019)
Revenues by region.
EMEA/APAC £233m (2018 £214m)
Americas, £154m (2018: £117m}

Our science in action

Human Health e.g. Molecular and clinical diagnostics, pharma and biotech

+  Qur Mikromel range of reference standards and our CMC solutions help assure the quality and consistency of pharmaceutical
manufacturing.

«  Qur genomics tools enable drug discovery through greater insight into the molecular basis of disease and mechanism of
action. Our molecular diagnostics toois help in disease diagnosis and treatment.

s Our oligonucleotide preducts, synthetic chemistry and analytical technology help discover and bring novel gene and cell
based therapies to market

e  Our bioanatytical solutions help understand drug efficacy and safety and our biomarker standards and controls give
canfidence in diagnestic mstruments and testing labs.

Applied Markets e.g. Food, environment, agribiotech industrial

. Our Dr Ehrenstorfer food Integrity reference standards help assure the quality and consistency of food guality, safety and
authenticity testing.

- QOur BRC Global Standards, Allergen Control and Informed Sport/Choice programmes prowvide confidence In product quality,
provenance, supply and manufacture

¢  Our Sulphur standards are used by oil refiners to produce cleaner fuels. This helps reduce harmful emissions and contributes
to a cleaner environment. ,

*  Our genomics technologies are widely used in marker assisted selection to help develop disease resistant and higher yield
crops. In turn, we help create more productive and cleaner agricutture.

Key investments

+  We continuously invest in our employees, through a number of tools, including the annual giobal talent review process and
management tramning pregrammes led by our Learning and Development team.

* We opened a reference materials manufacturing and proficiency testing facility in Nanjing, China in 2018. This facility
increases our manufacturing capacity to meet the grewth in demand for our products in the region.

»  We completed the expansion of our facilities at Axolabs GmbH in March 2019, expanding capacity to support strong demand
from customers in the development of nuclelc acid therapeutics

=  We completed the expansion of our Eurcpean proficiency testing hub in Bury, UK. The investment reflects continued strong
growth since we opened the faciity in 2010, and provides capacity for future growth in the food and beverage proficiency
testing market globalily.

¢ We relocated our o2si facility in Charleston, South Carofina, to a new, larger site, which will provide significant capacity for
future growth in the manufacture of organic and inarganic reference materials for the food and environmental sectors.

* At Biosearch in Petaluma, California, we completed a significant investment in our GMP faciiity for producing oligenucleotides
for therapeutic drug discovery.

+ The Fordham expansion was also completed successfully in the year, providing capacity for growth particularly in the large
molecule bioanalysis business We hosted a royal visit to our Fordham site on 28 March when HRH The Princess Royal
visited and met scientists at our expanded facility.

*  We invested in information technolagy platforms, including a US data centre for improved resiliency and scalability, the
implementation of our ERP system into acquired businesses and our e-commerce platforms, to improve our channe! reach
and customer expearience.
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Key Highlights (continued)

Acquisitions

« On 27 April 2018, we acquired BiocAutomation Cerporation, manufacturer of the renowned MerMade oligo synthesis
instruments and reiated consumabies BicAutormnation is based in Irving, Texas, USA.

= On 26 September 2018, we acquired Berry and Associates, a premier supplier of specialty oligo reagents. Berry and
Assoclates is based in Dexter, near Ann Arbar, Michigan, USA.

e The investments in BioAutomation and Berry and Associates fellow our acquisitions of Biosearch Technologies, Prime
Synthesis and LINK Technelegies in the oligonucleotide reagent and synthesised oligonucleotide markets.

= On 21 November 2018, we acquired SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc, a leading manufacturer and partner to globat invitro
diagnostics manufacturers and clinical laboratonies This acquisition strengthens our position across the spectrum of clinical
quality control tools market and builds upon our existing calibration verification materials and proficiency testing offerings,
including those of Maine Standards Company LLC, acquired in 2015 Additionally, the Seraseq clinical genomics tools are
complementary to our offering to the Next Generation Sequencing (NGS) market, which includes oligonucleotides, molecular
biology enzymes and magnetic beads. SeraCare Is based in Milford, Massachusetts, USA, and Gaithersburg, Maryland,
USA.

= On 11 December 2018, we acquired M B.H. Analytical Limited, (MBH) a feading manufacturer of metal alloy reference
materials The investment increases the breadth of our metal alloy reference materials portfolio, thereby strengthening our
differentiated position as a manufacturer of reference materials for that applied segment.
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Group strategic report

The Directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 22 to 83 are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards adopted by the European Union (“adopted IFRSs")

Principal activity

LGG Science Group Haldings Limited (“the Company”) and subsidiaries ("the Group” ar "LGC"} is a global leader in the life science
tools sector, serving customers in human healthcare, applied markets (including food, aghic and the environment), research and
government.

We provide a comprehensive range of reference materials, preficiency testing schemes, coligonucleotides, genernics reagents and
instrumentation based upon cur foundation of research and measurement capabilities.

Our scientific tools and solutions form an essential part of our customers’ quality and compliance procedures as well as enable
them to provide safer products, develop new solutions and advance research.

Our purpose and core values

Our core purpose is Science for a Safer World.

We are passionately committed to go beyond ordinary, in collaboration with our employees, our customers, and with absolute
quality.

Our values of Passion, Curiosity, Integrity, Brilliance and Respect embrace our employees’ commitment and dedication to
using science to work with our customers to make the world safer, and are deeply rooted in the behaviours we expect from ail cur
colleagues

Passion: We are passionate about everything we do. Our passion translates into our ambition to make the world a safer place.
We expect our employees to strive to continuously push boundaries, challenge norms and come to work with an infectious energy
to do their best every day

Curiosity: We constantly look forward to what's next: our curiosity for today's discoveries makes tomorrow's innovations possible.
We expect our employees to share their knowledge and expertise with each other and challenge the status quo We anticipate
our employees will discover creative and innovative solutions that will enable our customers and LGC to grow and evoive.

Integrity: A commitment to high ethical standards has been at the heart of LGC since we started testing the integrity of products
in 1842. Today, integrity is embedded throughout our business: we develop and deliver solutions that mateh our commitrments.
We demonstrate transparency and openness in all our actions. We expect our employees to trust the people they wortk with to do
the right thing, to behave ethically at all times and tc take accountability for their actions

Brilliance: We strive to be the very best in everything we say and do We exceed customers' expectations through innovation
and pioneering sclence. We set the bar high for succass and keep raising that bar. We expect our employees to achieve more by
working together collaboratively and to meet customers' needs with agility, adaptability and speed

Respect: We respect gender, age, nationality, religion and individuality, our diversity is our strength We appreciate the skills,
knowledge and strength of employess, teams and the Group as a whole, and respect our customers, their samples (where
appropriate) and our environment at large

Business model and strategy

LGC operates via the Standards and Genomics divisicns, underpinned by our Health, Science & Innovation {HS&I) team and our
corporate functions. Each division provides mission critical soiutions in life sciences tools and technology across growing end
markets The business mode! includes research and development, manufacturing, marketing, sales and customer support of a
range of specialist products underpinned by our science capabilities

The Standards division provides a comprehensive preduct range of Measurement Tools, Preficiency Testing schemes and Supply
Chain Assurance tools.




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Group strategic report (continued)

The Genomics division provides a comprehensive product range of Oligonuclectides, PCR (Polymerase Chain Reaction) reagents
and instrumentation and NGS (Next Generation Sequencing} tools

Our HS&I team runs a number of naticnal, scientific laboratories on behalf of the British Government along with leading analytical
and measurement capabilities for pharma customers in the development of nucleic acid therapeutics and small and large malecule
drugs

The business addresses markets which are underpinned by sustainable growth drnivers such as population demographics, nse of
the middle class, increased regulatory activity and a continuing demand for a high quality of life.

Our strategy is to builld sustainable leading positions in attractive niche segments reguining specialist scientific expertise, across
the life science tools sector, including clinical and molecular diagnostics, pharma & biotech and applied markets (food &
environment, agri-genomics, industrial and metals) In doing so we will leverage our position as a global leader in life science tools
and technology, our world-class measurement science capabilities, our highly differentiated and complete portfolio of products
and technologies and our proven capability in deliverning organic and inorganic growth.

Our strategic priorities

Qur employees set us apart from our competition Their in-depth knowledge and experiise across a breadth of scientific areas
enables our business to provide high calibre solutions to our customers We encourage cur employees to set the bar high and it
15 through their infectious energy to do their best every day that we constantly challenge today's science to create tomorrow’s
innovations

Our customers. We work closely with our customers, to ensure we deliver quality products and services Most of our Innovations
are born from co-operating with customers and understanding their issues

Our operating medel” Qur operating model fosters an agile and responsive organisation, with clear communication and lean and
effective processes Our Health, Science & Innovation team works across all our divisions, via the science family network, with
experts in key scientific domains to share knowledge and foster innovation.

Ownership
LGC’s ultimate controlling party is KKR & Co. L P. {("KKR"), an entity incorporated in the United States of America KKR acquired
their controlling interest through various subsidiary entities including KKR Blue Co-Invest L P. and KKR European Fund IV L.P

Founded in 1976, KKR is a leading gicbal investment firm, listed on the New York Stock Exchange, with approximately $200
billion in assets under management and with deep rocts in private equity. KKR has a long history of successfully investing in
science and healthcare businesses, including investments such as Alliance Boots, Adocia, HCA, Jazz Pharmaceuticals,
Panasonic Healthcare, PRA International, BridgeBio Pharma, Coherus Biosciences and Slayback Pharma. KKR brings decades
of financial, operational and consultancy experience, strong strategic, sector and market knowledge and a powerful netwerk of
global relationships.

KKR’s ewnership of LGC is a partnership that is accelerating the delivery of LGC's strategy, providing LGC access to new
opportunities, funding, clients and suppliers, and increasing incrganic growth via mergers and acquisitions, helping LGC to deliver
its strategic objectives

During the year, KKR has continued to partner with LGC to provide advice, capital and operational support to facilitate delivery of
LGC’s strategy
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Review of the business and financial performance

Key performance indicators

During the year, the Group has continued to Invest organically and pursue its strategy of making highly targeted acqguisitions to

centinue to develop leadership positions in sustainably growing niche markets

The Group performed well In the year to 31 March 2019 with revenue of £387 4m (2018 £331.2m) up 17% and Adjusted EBITDA

of £106 1m (2018, £86.4m) up 23% Net cash flow from operating activities increased 36% to £70 2m.

The Group's key performance indicators {*KPls") for the year are set out in the table below

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£m £m

Revenue 3874 331.2
Adjusted EBITDA* 106.1 86.4
Long-term syndicate borrowings 856.2 674.1
Net cash flow from operating activities 702 515

*Eamings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, unrealised foreign exchange gains and losses and material, unusual

and non-recurring items,

Year ended Year ended

31 March Z019 31 March 2018

£m £m

Adjusted EBITDA 106.1 86.4
Unreatlised foreign exchange gains and losses 0.4 (36)
Depreciation and amortisation (43.7} (35 1)
Material, unusual and non-recurring tems (27.4} (28.0)
Group operating profit / (loss) 35.4 21.7

KPI - Revenue

Revenue progression is a key metric aligned to LGC's overall sirategy of building sustainable leading positions in attractive

markets requiring specialist scientific expertise.

Revenue performance in the year was ahead of management expectations, with strong progression across geographies. Of note

was continued good growth in North America, China and Europe, reflecting progression i all end markets.

In North America, revenue performance was driven through organic performance of the business and strong performance of
recent acquisitions Strong European growth reflects the core underlying performance of the Group and also the very positive
performance of the businesses acquired in Eurcpe throughout 2016 and 2017. Axolabs GmbH in particular performed very strongly
again Growth in China continued to be strong, driven by sales of reference materials, particularly for the food, environment and

pharmaceutical markets, and increasingly also by genomics instruments and reagents.

LGC sdience Grquﬁ__l—idl‘dir-réé Limited
.- -Report angd accounts 2019 1
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Group strategic report (continued)

The acquisitions, since KKR took control of the Group in March 20186, all supperted the strong performance reperted for the year:

Company

Location

%

Principal Activity

Douglas Scientific LLC

Prime Synthesis Inc

AS] (asset deal)

Organic Standard Solutions

International LLC

BRC Trading Limited

APl Food Quality, Inc,
Axolabs GmbH

Link Technologies Limited

Lucigen Corporation Inc

Allergen Control Group

BioAutomation Corporation

Berry and Asscciates, Inc.

SeraCare Life Sciences,
Inc

M B_H. Analytical Ltd

KPI - Adjusted EBITDA

Alexandria, MN, USA

Aston, PA, USA
London, UK

Charleston, SC, USA

London, UK

Traverse City, Ml, USA
Kulmbach, Germany

Glasgow, UK

Middleton, WI, USA

Ontario, Canada

Irving, TC, USA

Dexter, MI, USA

Gaithersburg, MD, USA
Milford, MA, USA

Barnet, UK

55

100

100

100

77.5

100
100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Leader in high throughput Polymerase Chain Reaction
platforms and consumables to customers in the AgBio,
molecular diagnostics and other appled markets

Leading manufacturer of confrelled pore giass (‘CPG')
products used in oligonucleotide synthesis.

A leading immunosuppressive proficiency testing (PT)
scheme

A leading manufacturer of aorganic and inorganic National
Institute of Standards and Technology {NIST) traceable
reference materiais

A leading develaper of benchmark standards across food
safety, packing & packaging, storage & distribution,
zgents & brokers and consumer products.

A leading provider of food proficiency testing services.

A leading specialist contract development and
manufacturing organisation specialising Iin cligonuclectide
therapeutics

A premier suppler of
oligonucleotide synthesis

A developer, manufacturer and supplier of molecular
biclegy reagents and kis that target fast growth
applications in clinical diagnostics, drug discovery,
synthetic biology and gene editing

Operator of the world’s most ngorous and recognised
gluten-free certification programme

A designer, developer, manufacturer and

Supplier of synthesisers for pharmaceutical, biotech,
scientific research and deveiopment and academic
applications globafly

A premier supplier of specialty oligo reagents to the
pharmaceutical, clinical diagnostics and academic
research sectors as well as to oligonuclectide synthesis
companies and contract manufacturing crganisations.

A manufacturer and leading partner to global in-vifro
diagnostics manufacturers and clinical laboratones

speciality reagents for

A leading manufacturer of metal alloy reference materials.

Adjusted EBITDA is the one of LGC's key internal performance metrics which is monitored by both management and our main
stakehclders and capital providers as a measure of recurring, underlying profit performance. Adjusted EBITDA of £106 1m (2018
£86.4m) represents a margin of 27.4% (2018 26.1%) which was in ine with management expectations.

Adjusted EBITDA I1s operating profit before depreciation, amartisation, material, unusual or non-recurring items and the impact of
unrealised foreign exchange gains or losses. Adjusted EBITDA 15 not specifically defined under, nor presented in accordance with
IFRS Ycu should not therefore consider it as an alternative to profit for the year as determined in accordance with IFRS.

In deriving Adjusted EBITDA, operating profit 15 adjusted for a number of matenal, unusual and nonr-recurring items to permit a
better understanding by management and other stakehoiders of LGC’s recurring profit performance.
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Typically these material, unusual and non-recurring items include- one off costs associated with the acquisitions pursued by LGC,
costs associated with the integration of businesses successfuily acquired by LGC, restructuring cosis and the periodic impact of
the unwind of Fair Value adjustments made In accordance with IFRS 2 (“Business Commbinations”) relating to the transfer of
ownership of LGC Science Group Limited between Bridgepeint Capitat and KKR & Co and subsequent business combinations
Further details are included in notes 4 and 7.

KPI - Long-term syndicate borrowings & financial position

Strong financial capital management 1s crifical to the delivery of LGC's strategy. The capital structure of LGC is managed and
controlled by LGC's senior management, working closely with KKR Capital Markets and external advisors. The Board defines
limits regarding the mix and funding of capital. Long-term syndicate borrowings and operating cash flows are therefore included
as key performance indicators above.

LGGC maintains sufficient cash to fund day-to-day operating requirements. At the end of the year LGC had £59 Om (2018 £41.8m)
of cash on its Consolidated statement of financial position.

In common with many other with Private Equity backed businesses, LGC's capital structure includes a proportion of debt. Together
with equity funding and reserves of £540 6m (2018 £494 8m), LGC has long-term borrowings of £862.5m at 31 March 2018
(2018 £879 8m), a ratio of 0 6 equity and reserves: 1.0 long-term debt {2018: 0 7:1).

At 31 March 2019, the Group had long-term borrowings comprised of the following:

Group and Company Interest Maturity 2019 2018
£m £m
USD denominated syndicated loans LIBOR + (3 25%-6 75%) 4-5 years 385.3 270.2
EUR denominated syndicated loans EURIBOR + (3 25%-6 50%) 4-5 years 483.0 417 0
Issue costs (12 1) (13.1)
Syndicated loans subtotal 856.2 674 1
Long-term loan notes (including accrued 10% 13 years 6.3 57
interest)
862.5 679.8

LGC's syndicated loans are secured on the assets of the Company and certain subsidiary undertakings.

The purpose of these financial instruments was to repay debt and fund the acquisition of LGC Science Group Limited {and
associated undertakings) on 8 March 20186, to additionally fund the subsequent acquisittons in the period since and lo provide
sufficient operational funds to support Management with the execution of LGC's strategy. The total committed and undrawn Group
facilites under the Senior Facilites Agreement at 31 March 2018 were £50m (2018: £31m).

Further information on the Group's capital structure is included in notes 20, 21 and 27 to the financial statements.

KPI - Operating cash flow

LGC's cash generation was also strong, with positive net cash flow from operating activities in the year of £70.2m (2018: £51 5m).
This represents net cash flow from operating activities after the maternal and non-recurring costs identified in note 7 Management
monitor this metric when deciding strategic prorities for future periods
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Other key performance indicators
- Staff Engagement

Our employees are the key to our success Annually we conduct an employee engagerment survey. The 2018 survey recorded an
83% response rate (2018: 86%) We can be confident that the views expressed are representative of the workforce as a whole
We benchmark the whole group against other organisations. We also breakdown the survey to each location and division / team
level to ensure we put the night follow up actions in place. Our engagement rate was 4.15 (out of 5) in 2018 (2018. 4.15)

- Sector and Geography

[ SECtOr ] [ Geographv ] In additon to the main financial key
performance indicaters, Management review

metrics regarding end market sector, end
market geography and growth in those key
markets, as a measure of performance
against our strategy to build sustainable
leading positions n attractive niche segments

EMea  requining specialist scientific expertise
9%

Research & Clinical &
Gov MDx
23%

Amerleas

40%
Pharma &

Biotech
3%

Financial risks

LGC's operations expose It to a variety of financial nsks that include the effects of changes in price nisk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
interest rate cash flow nsk and foreign exchange risk

LGC has in place a financial risk management programme that seeks to limit the adverse effects on the financial performance of
LGC that could arse, including monitoning levels of debt finance and related finance costs Cash flow and leverage n respect of
the Company’s banking facilities are reparted monthly to the Board Given the size of LGC, the Directors have not delegated the
responsibiity of monitoring financial nsk management o a sub-committee of the Board The policies set by the Board are

implemented by LGC's finance department

Financia! risk Risk approach

Price LGC's specialist and centralised procurement function engages across the business to ensure price
risk is minimised on key supplies Although no formal programme of cemmaodity price management
has been adopted due to the profile of inputs of production, any significant expasure 1s reviewed
penodically by both the procurement function and Group Management and, where appropriate,
pricing is fixed by future purchasing agreements.

Credit LGC has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before
sales are made, A policy of individual customer credit limits 1s used to manage exposure to any
individual customer LGC's principal financial assets are bank balances, cash, frade and other

receivables

Liquidity LGC actively maintains a mixture of fong-term and short-term debt finance and cash deposits that
are designed to ensure LGC has sufficient available funds for operations, expansion and planned
acquisitions. From 8 March 2016, there are no liquidity covenants associated with the Company’s
banking facilities

Interest rate During the year ended 31 March 2019 all of the Greups’ bank debt was at floating interest rates (3
cash flow month LIBOR / EURIBOR} LGC monitors the trends in interest rates and regularly consults with
Investors and advisors regarding interest rates LGC has opted to partially fix USD interest rates and
partially cap EUR interest rates. LGC holds fluctuating cash balances that earn interest at fluctuating

market rates (ncte 27).
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Financial risk Risk approach
Foreign exchange LGC is exposed 1o cash flow risk as a result of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency
cash flow This risk s partially mitigated by internally generated cash flows in a simifar mix of currencies Net

nisk of exposure to operations in foreign currencies 1s managed by the purchase of forward foreign
exchange contracts

fnvestment

In the year to 31 March 2019 we continued to invest significantly in our businesses, in new technology and in new opportunities.
Overall capital expenditure for the year was £43.5m (2018: £31.2m), reflecting continued mvestment in capacity and infrastructure
for future growth, scientific equipment and IT across the entire business.

Of particular note are the substantial investments in the reference material and proficiency testing manufacturing facility in Nanjing
(Ch), the Bury (UK) proficiency testing bub expansion, our GMP aligonucieotide produchion facility in Petaluma, CA (USA) and in
expanding our nucleic acid therapeutic footprint \n Germany. The 02Si business in Charleston {USA} was refocated to targer
premises and the {arge molecule bicanalysis laboratories n Fordham, Cambridgeshire (UK) were also enfarged.

Key investments in IT include the US datacenter to improve resilience and scalability given the business that LGC now has in the
USA, implementation of the ERP system into acquisitions and in customer facing technology including e-commerce In addition,
the obligation to pay future royalties on revenues relating to a strategically important portfelio of enzymes was also bought out.

Other principal risks and uncertainties

The review of other principal risks and uncertainties contains certain forward-looking statements These statements have been
made by the Directors in good faith based on the information available to them at the time of their approval of this report. They
shouid be treated with caution due to the inherent uncertainties arising because they reiate to circumstances that may or may not
accur in the future.

LGC's enterprise risk management is centra! to the achievement of our strategic priorities. 1t is managed across our business
through a number of formal and informal processes, These risk management processes sit within our overall governance
framework, which include clear accountabilties, delegated authority limits and well-defined policies and procedures that govern
employee and business conduct.

L GC approaches risk in accordance with standard risk management methodology, which 1s based upon the process set out in
150 31000:2018 Risk Management, Principles and Guidelines. LGC also considers organisational resilience as a key part of risk
management and werks in accardance with the principles of BS 65000:2014. The Enterprise Risk Management team provides an
independent risk based audit function, with clear reporting lines to the CFO

The Group Risk Committee has overall responsibility for operational risk management and meets regularly to review the risk
environment and risk mitigations. The Committee is chaired by the CFO and comprises senior members of Management including
the Chief Information Officer, Group General Counsel, Head of Enterprise Risk Management and representatives from each of
the trading divisions

The principal risks facing the Group include.

Risk Risk approach
Macroeconomic, market LGC's leadership positions, global reach and exposure to a number of end markets which are
and competitor driven by long term macro drivers, minimises the impact of macroeconomic shocks on the Group

We operate globally in 2 number of countries and markets where competition and innovation can
be high. We regularly monitor market trends and competitor developments. We invest in research
and development, new production capabilities, laboratory instrumentation, new technologies and
improving general business infrastructure {6 maintain our feading position in these markets.

" LGE Séience G;rrél—ibeutdings"Lifhited'
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Risk Risk approach
In some areas, LGC has longer term contracts, some with Government bedies, which are subject
to periodic competitive tender. Renewal of these contracts s uncertain and is based on financial
and performance criteria, in some cases allied to the continuance or otherwise of testing or
research programmes Overall, custcmer concentratien I1s low with the largest customer
accounting for less than 5% of revenues.

Legal & regulatory LGC 1s subject to various legal and regulatory requirements in relation to, for example,
employment, data protecticn, health and safety, envircnmental protection, trade sanctions, and
tax and other corporate regulations governing LGC's activities LGC is aware of the importance
of identifying and complying with all apglicable legislation and regulation affecting our business
activities giobally

Legal and regulatory developments are actively monitered by LGC's nisk committee and by our
Enterprise Risk Management, Tax, Legal and Company Secretarial departments, in conjunction
with our advisors, to ensure that new and existing laws and regulations are identified, understood
and complied with.

Empioyee recruitment and  Qur ability to deliver our strategy depends on having the night talent The loss of key talent, or the
retentian fallure o attract sufficient talent could have & serious impact on cur ability to deliver our strategy.

To ensure that we are able to recruit and retain the right people and develop them with the right
skills, we have strong recruitment practices in place, provide regular learning and development
opportunities in order to enhance the professional abilty of all employees, and operate a talent
management process.

IT Resilience Technology underping our ability to delver our strategy Cybersecunty, platform performance and
infrastructure resilience are of significant importance to LGC, In addition to financial investment,
our senior technoiogy and Enterprise Risk leaders regularly assess risk, policy and best practice
to ensure IT operational resilience

Trends and factors affecting future development and performance

We will continue to invest in delivering profitable organic and acquisttive growth 1n our chosen end markets

Macro trends previously identified result in iong-term sustainable growth drivers far markets addressed by LGC These include
the increasingly complex regulatory, production and supply chain environments in both developed and emerging markets, the
growing rofe of health and safety in beth developed and emerging economies, the increasing regulatory frameworks 1n a wide
range of technically demanding industries {including pharmaceutical, food, environment and industnal), the increased use of
molecular diagnostics and therapeutics In a clinical setting, and the need to improve crop yields to meet increasing demand.

From a geographic perspective, this growth will come from expanding presence within ali regions but in particular North America,
where we continue to develop our standards and genomics presence, and in Asia, where there 1s a particular demand for LGC's
products and services due to the macroeconomic growth drivers in that region.

Acquisttions will remain a feature of our growth, building scientific capability and geographic presence, according fo a tailored and
disciplined approach to deal ongination, execution and integration.

Corporate Social Responsibility

We are committed to a working environment that encourages employees to recognise the importance of Corporate Social
Responsibility and diversity Alongside our approach to equal opportunities, other important examples of reaching out to the wider
community include our support and commitment to fund raise for an annual chanty, activities for and within the local communities
In which we operate, and policies designed to foster sustainablility at local, national and global levels

More infermation can be found in cur Corporate social respensibility report available on our website. Igcgroup.com
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Quality, Health, Safety and the Environment (QHSE)

Qverail, we have continued to build on our excellent quality, health, safety and environmental record dunng the past year Qur
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) and divisional QHSE teams have continued to ensure sigmificant focus in this area across
our business The Head of Enterprise Risk Management, and the ERM team provide group policy on Quality, Health & Safety and
Environment.

Our quality performance was underiined by a number of successful regulatory and customer audits We continue to comply with
all environmental legislative requirements in the territories in which we operate and fo maintain a programme of centinuous
improvement In all QHSE areas.

LGC is committed to operating the busiiess in accordance with the Health and Safety laws and regulations of the countries in
which we operate and adopting the accepied best practices of comparable organisations. The Head of Enterprise Risk
Management, in conjunction with the ERM team and divisional safety representatives, 1s responsible for setting the strategy and
monitoring and reporting upon the performance across LGC

We are committed to the continucus improvement of our environmental performance and we aim to operate our Environmental
Management System (EMS) aligned with ISO 14001 principles The EMS provides the framework for setting and reviewing
environmental objectives and targets

The Head of Enterprise Risk Management in conjunction with the ERM feam, and divisional QHSE team representatives, is
responsible for setting the environmental strategy and moenitoring environmental compliance and performance

We are also committed to the prevention of pollution and to reducing the environmental impact of our business operations in order
to protect the health and safety of our employees, surrounding communities and ecosystems. The control of energy and materials
consumption, along with the responsible management of our waste, is key to our efforts to improve environmental performance
and reduce our carbon footprint.

Employees and Gender Diversity

The number of employees for the year ended 31 March 2019 was 2,805 (2018 2,626).

We are committed to creating an employment environment that attracts, retains and motivates the best employees Throughout
LGC, emphasis is placed on personal development to meet both today’s needs and those of the future. Employee communication
and consultalion 1s encouraged at all Jevels of the business. The provision of information and consultation between management
and employees is facilitated through structured quarterly communication, town halls, the intranet and various consultative
committees across LGC

A requirement of the Companies Act 2006 Is that the company should assess and comment on any pertinent information regarding
fiuman rights issues in this report. Given the nature of our business we do not believe it is necassary to include such information.

We are also required to publish our gender pay gap in the UK, which is available an our website lgcgroup.com.
It 1s the Company policy to provide equal opportunities for all employees and applicants on the basis of objective criteria and
personal abilities regardless of gender, age, religion, sexual orientation or ethnic origin. This policy ensures that recruitment and

advancement are carried out on the basis of merit.

We also give full and fair consideration to disabled persans applying for employment, having regard to their particular aptitudes
and abilities, as well as the continuing employment and appropriate training of employees who become disabled.
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The table below shows the gender diversity within the Group at the date of reporting

2019 2018
Male % Female % Male % Female %
Board Of Directors and Company Secretary 30 10 90 10
Senior Managers 66 34 &8 32
Other employees 42 58 42 58

Senior managers are comprised of the members of the Executive Leadership Team (unless already included within the Board of
Directors} and the LGC Leadership Team.

The Strategic report, as set out on pages 4 to 13 has been approved by the Beard.
Tim Robinson

Director and Chief Executive Officer
25 July 2019




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Corporate governance report

The Board of Directors 1s responsible for setiing LGC's strategic direction, the averall management of the Group and maintaining
effective operational control, including significant financial, organisational, legal and regulatory controls.

The Board is committed to high standards of corporate governance and ethical behavior in directing LGC’s affairs. The Board 1s
responsibie for the oversight of the corporate governance framework and its implementation within all Group operating companies

The Board consists of senior LGC employees’ gpecifically the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), Chief Financial Officer (CFQ}, Chief
Scientific Officer (CS0), two other Executive Directors (Managing Diractors of the Standards and Genomics Divisions), three KKR
appointed Directors and a Non-Executive Director.

The Board 1s organised in such a way as to ensure sach member receives the appropriate business and functional support
reguired to discharge their respaonsibilities and to faciitate an appropniate level of information to allow constructive challenge and
debate at Board level.

The Board Directors and Company Secretary are.

Tim Robinson, Tim joined LGC in 2013 as Chief Executive Tim has followed an international career in the
Chief Executive Officer  technology and services sectars, spanning Engineering, Marketing and Corporate Leadership

Following a decade with IBM in Asia and Europe, Tim joined Silicon Graphics (SGI) as European
Marketing Director, before becoming Managing Director of SGI in the UK & Ireland. After his
appointment as Chief Executive of OSC Group, he led the company infc the FTSE 250 and was
subsequently appointed Senior Vice President of the glabal Civil Security Division of Thales, based
in Paris Tim was then appainted CEO for Xafinity, the privatised Office of the Paymaster General.
He was previously Chief Executive of Talaris, the global leader in technology-based solutions for
cash management.

Tim s a Non-Executive Director of the Department for International Development. He has also been
a Non-Execufive Board Member of UK Trade & Investment, a Member of the Association of Oxfam,
serving on their Audit Committeg, and a Non-Executive Director of Camelot Group.

Simon Parsons, Simon was appointed Chief Financial Officer of LGC in 2010. He joined LGC after working as CFO

Chief Financial Officer in two private equity investments owned by Apax Partners and Balderton Capital. Prior to that,
Simon held a number of Generai Manager and Finance Director positions in the UK and italy with
Celesio AG, a leading European wholesale and retail pharmaceuticals business. Simon qualified as
a Chartered Accountant with Ernst & Young in 1993 where he worked in both the UK and US
practices.

Derek Craston, Derek joined the Group in 1991 and jeined the Board in 2012 as Chief Scientific Officer (CSO). In

Chief Scientific Officer addition ta his role as CSO, Derek feads LGC's Health Science & Innovation capability. He served
as Government Chemist until 1 June 2018 Derek has a degree in Chemstry from the University of
St Andrews, a PhD from Imperial College, London and has been awarded an honorary doctorate by
Kingston University

i "('_GC:S__GI'E:MC:A Groupr Holeings Limited | ©
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Euan O’'Sullivan,
Managing Director,
LGC Standards

Brian Kim, Managing
Director, LGC
Genomics

Edouard Pilfot,
Director KKR& Co L P

Mark Danzey, Director
KKR Capital Markets

Kugan
Sathiyanandarajah,
Director KKR & Co Inc

Nicholas Roelofs,
Non-Executive Director

Euan joined the Board in June 2017 Having initially joined LGC as a Non-Executive Director in late
2007, Euan assumed an executive role as Corporate Development Director in July 2010 In this
rale, Evan was responsible for the Group’s corporate development activities, including mergers,
acquisitions, disposals and strategy development. Euan assumed his current role as Managding
Director of the Standards division in July 2012

Euan joined LGC from UK private equity house LGV Capital, where he was an Investment Director
Prior to LGV, Euan worked as a consultant in Accenture’s business strategy practice and within the
M&A. division of Close Brothers Corporate Finance. Euan is a graduate of University Cellege,
Oxford.

Brian joined the Board in June 2017 having joined LGC in November 2016. Brian has a wealth of
experience in the genomics ard life sciences markets, having run large, complex global businesses
fer a number of major companies Bnan joined LGC from PerkinElmer, where he led the Life
Sciences and Tools division, managing a globhal portfolo of various technologies and products
ranging from instruments, reagents, service, and software

Brian holds & Master of Business Administration from Tuck School of Business at Dartmouth and
both a BS in Economics and a BA in Histery, from the University of Pennsylvania

Edouard joined the Board 1n March 2017, having joined KKR 1n 2006 Edouard is part of KKR's
Private Equity team, where he heads Business Services.

Since joining KKR, Edouard has been involved in the investments in A-Gas, Travelepia, Valinge,
SMCP and KION as well as the portfolic management of the investments in LGC, Maxeda and
Northgate Information Solutions Prior to Joining KKR, he was with CIBC World Markets' European
ieveraged finance group, and the diversified industrials investment banking depariment of J.P.
Morgan in London and Paris. Edouard holds an MSc from the Ecole Superieure des Sciences
Economiques et Commerciales (ESSEC).

Mark joined the Board imn March 2018. Mark joined KKR Capital Markets (KCM) in 2008 Since
joining KCM, Mark has worked on a variety of debt and equity financings for KKR peortfolic
companies and third party clients Prior to joining KCM, Mark was a Vice President onJ P Morgan's
leveraged finance capital markets desk and previously alsc worked in J P Morgan's leveraged
finance ongination team Mark spent the first year of his career at Deutsche Bank.

Kugan joined the Board in March 2016 Having joined KKR in 2010, Kugan held joint responsibility
for the Eurcpean healthcare team and was a member of the UK team until 2017. He was involved
in the investments in LGC Group, Alvogen, Walgreens Boots Alliance and Galenica. in addition, he
was invelved in the portfolio management of Northgate Information Systerns. In 2019, Kugan joined
KKR's US healthcare team,

Prior te joining KKR, Kugan was with Goldman Sachs, where he was a member of the UK mergers
& acquisitions team. Kugan holds an M.A (First Class Hons) in Physical Natural Sciences,
specialising in theoretical chemistry, from the University of Cambridge.

Nicholas joined the Board in Apni 2016 Prior to joining the Group, Nicholas served as Senior Vice
President at Agilent Technologies Inc., as well as President of its Life Sciences Group from 2009
to 2013 He alsc served as the Vice President and General Manager of the Life Sciences division
from 2006 to 2009.

Prior to joining Agilent Technoiogies Inc, Nicholas was with Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc from 2005
to 2006 and served as the Life Science Group’s Group Operations Officer heading five business
divisions spanning life science and food science His time at Stratagene Corporation from 2001 to
2005 saw him serve as Senior Vice President of marketing, sales and business deveiopment for
the first 2 years and as Chief Operating Officer for the last 2 years.
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Professionally, Nicholas 15 a Global 50 Member and also a part of the Malaysian Biotechnology
International Advisory Panel. He has also served on the Advisory Board of Chemical & Engineering
News for the American Chemical Society Magazine. Nicolas completed his M.S in Organic
Chemistry from lowa State University and has a PhO in Organic Chemistry from the University of
Nevada, Reno

Neetu Ogle Neetu joined LGC in July 2016, as General Counsel and Company Secretary She has overall
General Counsel and responsibility for LGC Group's legal, company secretanal and IP management functions. Prior to
Company Secretary jaining LGC, Neetu was a senior member of the iega!l team at Inmarsat plc which she joined after a

period of time at QinetiQ Group plc

Neetu gained her private practice experience at leading national and international law firms, Wragge
& Co and Allen & Overy Neetu holds an LLB m Law and Politics from the University of Birmingham.

Board meetings and committees

Board mestings were held for each of 10 months of the year with papers supplied for the other 2 months The Board was alsg
convened from time to time when specific matters arising required Board discussion or approval.

At each Board meeting, the CEQ provided an update on LGC's key activities and the CFO provided an update on LGC's financial
performance.

In addition to the routine reports, the Board considered a range of matters during the year including, amongst other items:

«  Strategy - LGC's strategy was discussed, confirmed and approved;

. Business performance - financial, operaticnal and strategic performance updates on LGC's divisions were provided by the
relevant Executive Directors;

=« Annual budget - LGC's annual budget was approved,

. People - the Board have an annual review of Group talent, development and succession planning with penodic updates The
Board also reviews the cutput and actions arising from the employee survey,

+ Technology - progress updates on the development of LGC's ERP and scommerce systems, and other significant
investments in technalogy and scientific equipment were provided by senior science and technoloegy employees,

«  Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) and quality, health, safety and the environment (QHSE) - LGC's approach to ERM and
QHSE matters and performance agatnst that strategy were discussed; and

+« Disputes and litgation - updates on any material disputes faced by LGC were provided by the General Counsel.

The CEO and other members of the Board provide regular updates to employees both face to face, by emall and via recorded
videos and the intranet These updates provide a summary of LGC's strategy and performance, together with details of the
chailenges and opportunities faced by LGC These events are designed to update employees on the progress of LGC and provide
them with an opportunity to ask questions and provide feedhack regarding the canduct of the business.

The Board is supported by two Board Committees. the Audit Commiftee and the Remuneration Commutiee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mark Danzey, and includes one further KKR appointed director, one nen-Executive Director
and the CEO. The CFO is required to be present at all meetings. The quorum for the Audit Committee is two, one of whem must
be a director appointed by KKR.

The Audit Committee's main responsibilities are:

«  Monitoring the integrity of the Groups financial statements and reviewing significant accounting and reporting judgements;

D Receiving feedback from the Group's external auditor regarding key financial controls and any judgmental areas;

. Reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control environment; and

«  QOverseeing the relationship with the Group's external auditor, including appointment, remuneration, nature and scope of work
and review of independence.
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The Audit Committee discharges its responsibilities through its meetings which are held twice per year and at other times as
needeq

Remuneration Committee

During the year, the Remuneration Commitiee was chaired by Edouard Piliot.
The quorum for the Remuneration Committee is two, one of whom must be a director appointed by KKR.

The Coammittee has responsibility for determining the overall framework and policy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors
other Senior Executives and employees overall, as determined by the Board

The remuneration policy In respect of Executive Directors and Senior Executives is to provide packages that are intended o
attract, motivate and retain the talent necessary to develop LGC and deliver LGC's strategy

ltems discussed included appointments, objectives, performance management and related incentive schemes

The Committee discharges its responsibilities through its meetings, which are held four times per year and at other times as
needed

Signed on behalf of the Board

ol

Tim Robinson
Director and Chief Executive Officer
25 July 2019




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Directors’ report

The Directors present their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019,

Directors

The Directors who served the Company during the year were as follows:

Derek Craston

Mark Danzey

Brian Kim

Euan O'Sullivan

Simon Parsons

Edouard Pillot

Tim Robinson

Nicolas Roeiofs

Kugan Sathiyanandarajah

Directors’ liabilities

The Company has in foerce and has granted indemnities in respect of some of its subsidiary companies to one or more of its
Directors against hiability in respect of proceedings brought by third parties, subject to the conditions set out in the Companies Act
2008. Such qualifying third party indemnity provisions remain in force as at the date of approving the Directors’ repert The
Company reviews (ts policies on an annual hasis in order to satisfy itself that its level of cover remains adequate

Employee involvement and disabled employees

The Groups approach to employee involvermnent, inclusiveness, equal opportunities and support of disabled ernployees are set in
the strategic report on page 12.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, having regard to future projections for the Group and
financing arrangements in place. The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foraseeable future

The Group has loan facilibes to provide adequate financing to support the Group’s operations. The covenants set out in the
facilities are, and are forecast to continue to be, satisfied. The loans have a remaining term in excess of 4 years. Whiist
acknowledging the inherent risk in any plan, the Directors are concluding that, having considered the factors set out above, it 1s
appropriate to prepare the financia! statements on a going concern basis.

Research and development activities

In the year ended 31 March 2019 signficant research and development was undertaken by the Group, both directly funded by the
Group, through Government and cther customer funded programmes in support of both customers’ and the Group’s own projects.
The Group is proud of its record of developing new products and services, with a significant focus on research and development
activities again in the year.

Financial instruments

Details of financial instruments are provided in the strategic report on page 8.

Reappointment of auditors

The auditars are deemed o be re-appointed in accordance with the provision of $487 of the Companies Act 2006.

ience Group Holdings Limited |~
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Future developments

Details of future developments are provided In the strategic report.

Guidelines for Disclosure and Transparency in Private Equity

The Directors consider that the annual report and financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Walker
Guidslines for Disclosure and Transparency in Private Equity

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Sc far as each persan who was a Director at the date of approving this report 1s aware, there is no relevant audit information,
being informafion needed by the zudifor in connection with preparing its repert, of which the auditor is unaware Having made
enquiries of fellow Directors and the Group’s auditor, each Director has taken all the steps that he/she is obliged to take as a
Director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and tc establish that the auditor is aware of that

information

Dividends

The Directers do not recommend an intenm dividend or final dividend {2018, £nil)

By order of the Board

’
g

Simon Parsons
Director and Chief Financial Officer
25 July 2019
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The Directors are responsible for prepaning the Strategic report, the Cerparate Geovernance report, the Diractors' report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Unjon for the consolidated financial statements and in accordance with United Kingdom Genetrally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicabie faw) for the Company Under company law the
Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period In preparing these financial
statements, the Directors are required to

«  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

»  make Judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

«  state whether applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unian have been
foilowed for the consolidated financial statements, subject to any material depantures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements;

»  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed for the Company financial statements, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

«  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue
in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and expiain the Group’s and
Company’s fransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial pasition of the Group and the Company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.




Independent auditor’s report

to the members of LGC Science Group Holdings Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of LGC Science Group Holdings Limited ('the parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the
‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise Consolidated income statement, the Consolidated and Parent company
statement of financial position, Consolidated statement of cash flows, the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
Group and Parent statement of changes in equity and the related notes 1 to 31, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framewerk that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as
applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. The financial reporting framework that has been applied In
the preparation of the parent company financial statements 15 applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”,

In our opinion;

* the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company’'s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and
of the group's loss for the year then ended,

+ the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with iIFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union;

+ the parent company financial staterments have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” as adopted by the European Union in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Qur
respansibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financtal statements
section of our report below We are independent of the group and parent company in accerdance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilied our
other ethical responsibiitties in accordance with these requirements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our cpinion

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nething to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

+ the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate, or

+ the directors have not disciosed in the financial statements any identified maternal uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt about the group's or the parent company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The other information compnises the information Included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon The directors are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated
in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, cur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such matenal inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we
are required to determine whether there 18 a matenal misstatement in the financial statements or a matenal misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conciude that there 1s a material misstatement of the cther
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.




Independent auditor’s report (continued)

to the members of LGC Science Group Holdings Limited

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
» the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accerdance with applicabie legal requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ report

We have nothing 1o report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 20086 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinon:

+« adeqguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

+« ceriain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of directors

As explamned more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement set out on page 20, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being sahsfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsibie for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability to
cantinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to gaing coricern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to ligudate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstaterent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Councii's website at hitps-www. frc.org uk/audntorsresponsibiliies This description forms part of our auditor’s
report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to
state to them 1n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed,

;:M&d%j P

Philip Young (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Emnst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

Date: 25 July 2019




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Nates £000 £000

Continuing operations:
Group revenue 5 387,452 331,191
Raw materials and consumables (97,032) (95,967)
Staff costs 9 (147,720) (123,966)
Depreciation and amortisation (43,786} {35,155)
Other administration and operating expenses (63,686) (54,697)
Profit on disposa! of fixed assets 163 264
Adjusted EBITDA 106,137 86,400 '
Unrealised foreign exchange gains and losses 408 (3,620)
Depreciation and amortisation {43,786) (35,155)
Material, unusual and non-recurring items 7 (27,368) (25,955)
Group operating profit 6 35,391 21,670
Finance income 8 875 579
Finance cost 8 {45,637) (37,408)
Loss on disposal of investments 10 - (16,555)
Loss before tax from continuing operations (9,371} {31,712)
Tax income on loss 11 4,542 11,444
Loss for the period from continuing operations (4,829) {20,268}
Discontinued operations:
Loss for the period after tax from discontinued cperations 10 (449) {3,276}
Loss for the period (5,278) {23,544)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (v,026) (23,585)

1,748 51

Non-controlling interests

Loss for the financial period (5,278) (23,544)




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Consolidated statement of comprehensive
income

for the year ended 31 March 2019

2018 2018

Notes £036 £600
{ oss for the financial period (5,278} (23,544}
ftems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss in
subsequent periods (net of tax):
Exchange differences on transiation of fareign operations 15,625 (14,622)
Net (loss} / gain on cash flow hedges {584) 1,602
Items not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarial galn on UK defined bepefit pension scheme 23(b) 10,987 1,868
Actuarial gain on foreign defined benefit pension schemes 41 103
Income tax effect (2,187) {355)
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 18,604 {34,947)
Attributabie to:
Equity holders of the Company 16,856 (34,998)
Non-controlling interests 1,748 51
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 18,604 {34,947)
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Consolidated statement of financial position

at 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Assets Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Preperty, plant and equipment 13 97,857 85,134
[ntangible assets 14 1,255,835 1,086,849
Long-term recewvabies 16 362 430
Deferred tax assets (restated) 11 g 184
Derivative asset 27(a) 12,635 11,737
1,366,687 1,184,334
Current assets
Inventories 17 86,424 56,436
Trade and cther recevables 18 74,011 61,069
Income tax asset 6,763 2,555
Derivative asset 27(a) 1,457 2,998
Cash and cash equivaients 19 58,876 41,818
227,631 164,874
Total assets 1,694,328 1,349,208
Equity and liabilities
Issued share capital 20 60,493 56,582
Share premium 20 544,439 509,242
Foraign currency translation reserve 27,668 12,043
Hedging reserve 27(a) 1,018 1,602
Retained earnings (92,988) (84.656)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Group 540,630 484 813
Nan-controlling interests 10,773 10,230
Total equity 551,403 505,043
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 21 862,503 679,835
Retirement benefit obligation 23 450 10,956
Deferred tax liabilities (restated) 11 59,284 60,808
Provisions 24 9,039 6,367
931,276 757,966
Current liahilities
Trade and other payables 25 101,568 79,988
Income tax liability 8,898 5,821
Derivative liability 27(a) 1,183 390
111,649 86,199
Total liabilities 1,042,925 844,165
Total equity and liabilities 1,594,328 1,349,208

~d

Simon Parsons
Chief Financial Officer
25 July 2018




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Statement of financial position of the Company

at 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Notes £000 £000
Mon-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 15 436,483 277,981
Long-term receivables 16 1,177,142 999,678
Deferred tax assets 11 862 1,500
1,614,487 1,279,159
Current assets
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - 735
Derivative asset 27(a) 1,018 1,602
Income tax asset 304 ~
1,322 2.337
Total assets 1,615,809 1,281,496
Equity and liabilities
Share caprtal 20 60,493 56,582
Share premium Z20 544 439 509,242
Hedging reserve 27(a) 1,018 1,602
Retained earnings 56,962 23,743
Total equity 662,912 591,169
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 21 951,306 689,258
Current liabilities
income tax liability - 304
Trade and other payables 25 408 375
Oerivative liability 27(aj 1,183 390
Total liabilities 952,897 690,327
Total equity and liabilities 1,615,809 1,281,496

-

Simon Parsons
Chief Financial Officer
25 July 2019




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 March 2019

Issued Foreign Non-

Share Share currency Retained Hedging controlling Total

capital Premium translation earnings reserve Total interests equity

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 31 March 2017 56,582 509,242 26,665 (62,678) - 529,811 10,179 539,990
Loss for the year - - - (23,595) - {23,595) 51 (23,544)
Other comprehensive
Income - - {14622) 1,617 1,602  (11,403) - {11,403)
Total comprehensive
income - - (14,622)  (21,978) 1,602 (34,998) 51 (34,947)
At 31 March 2018 56,582 509,242 12,043 (84,656) 1,602 494,813 10,230 505,043
Effect of adoption of new
accouhting standards - - - {3,364) - {3,364) - {3,364)
At 31 March 2018
{restated) 56,582 509,242 12,043 (88,020) 1,602 491,449 10,230 501,679
Loss for the year - - - (7.026) - (7,026) 1,748 (5,278)
Other comprehensive
income - - 15,625 8,841 (584) 23,882 - 23,882
Total comprehensive
income - - 15,625 1,815 (584) 16,856 1,748 18,604
Share capital issued In
period 3,911 35,197 - - - 39,108 - 39,108
Changes in non-controlling
interests . - - (6,783) - (6,783) {1,2085) (7.988)
At 31 March 2019 60,493 544,439 27,668 (92,988) 1,018 540,630 10,773 551,403




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited

Statement of changes in equity of the Company

for the year ended 31 March 2019

At 31 March 2017

Profit far the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

At 31 March 2018

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Share capttal issued in period

At 31 March 2019

Issued Share Share Hedging Retained

capital Premium reserve earnings Tatai
£000 £000 £009 £0C0 £000
56,582 509,242 - (29,817} §36,0G7
- - - 53,560 53,560

- - 1,602 - 1,602

- - 1,602 53,560 55,162
656,582 509,242 1,602 23,743 591,169
- - - 33,2149 33,219

- - (584) - 584

- - (584) 33,218 32,635
3,911 35,197 - - 39,108
60,493 544,439 1,018 56,962 662,942




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited

Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 March 2019

Loss for the pericd

Adjustments to reconcile to net cash flows
Deprewiation and amertisation

{Profit) / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Finance Income

Finance cost

LLoss on disposal of investments

Income tax Income

Movement i1 provisiens

Unwind of fair vaiue adjustments

Net foreign exchange differences

Working capital adjustments

Increase In inventories

Increase in trade and other receivables

Increase / {decrease) in trade and other payables

Operating cash flows (before income tax)
Income taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of investments

Acquisition of tangible assets

Acquisition of Infangible assets

Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings (net of cash acquired)

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid

Issue of share capital

Bank loans repaid

New borrowings

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Net foreign exchange difference
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Apni

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

Notes 2019 2018
(5,278) (23,544)

& 43,800 36,622
(163) 463

8 (875) (579)
8 45,637 37,406
10 - 16,555
11 {4,542) (11,444)
24 1,102 {(121)
7 8,024 10,127
(408} 3,620

87,297 69,105

(10,335) (835)

{6,484) {4,037)

10,152 {1,533)

{6,667) (6,405)

80,630 62,700

{(10,398) (11,235)

70,232 51,465

478 139

366 364

10 - 30,265
13 (24,713) (26,250)
14 (18,818) {4,948)
(179,232) (54,699)

(221,919) {55,129)

{39,720) (33,592)

20 39,108 -
(32,535) {63,500)

201,734 85,278

168,587 {(11,815)

16,900 {15,479)

260 (3,243)

41,816 60,538

18 58,876 41,816




L GC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019
1. Corporate information

The consolidated financial statements of LGC Science Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (caollectively, the Group) for
the year ended 31 March 2019 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors and the Board on 25
July 2019 The Group and the Company is a private company limited by share capital incorporated in England and Wales and
dormiciled in United Kingdom.

The address of ifs registered office is.

LGC

Queens Road
Teddington
Middlesex
TW11 0LY

2. Accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
its interpretations adopted by the EU (“*adopted IFRS’s") and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under
IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board {ISAB).

The financial information is presented 10 GBP pounds (£) sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (E00C)
except where otherwise stated.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates
The principa) accounting policies applied In the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below, These
policies have been consistently applied to the year presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation — the Group

The consolidatad financial statements have been prepared in accordance with adopted IFRS and under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilifies {including derivative instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to axercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies

Basis of preparation — the Company
The financial statements of the Parent company weare prepared in accordance with FRS 101 and under historical cost accounting
rules.

Discfosure exemptions
The Company has faken advantage of the following exemptions under IFRS.

« the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments. Disclosures;

+ the requirement of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;

«  the requirements of paragraphs 10(d) and 10{f) of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements; and

« the requirements in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party fransactions entered into between two or more
members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is a party to the transaction is wholly owned by such a member.

o LééiScféﬁcéGgéngVE-i"ql‘ding's_;ml’ted
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019
2. Accounting policies (cantinued)

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, having regard to future projections for the Group and
financing arrangements in place The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adeguate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeanle future

The Parent has the banking facilities to provide adequate financing to support the Group's operations and the covenants set out
in the faciliies are, and are forecast to continue to be, satisfied.

Whilst acknowledging the inherent risk in any plan, the Directors are concluding that, having considerad the factors set out above,
it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis

Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consclidate the financial staternents of LGC Science Group Heldings Limited and its subsidiary

undertakings, drawn up to 31 March 2019 No income statement is presented for LGC Science Group Hcldings Limited as
permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2008

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company Contral 1s achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity sc as to obtain benefits from its activities

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the iIncome statement from the effective date
of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
staternents of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by the Group

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for business combinations that resuit in the acquisition of subsidianes by
the Group The cost of a business combgination is measured as the fair value of the assets transferred, equity instruments issued
and labilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable o the business combination The
consideratien transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
tdentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed In a business combination are measured initiaily at
their fair values at the acquisition date. Any excess of the cost of the business combination over the acquirer's interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent habilites recognised is recorded as goecdwill Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are
related parties, are eliminated in full.

Intra-group losses are also elimnated but may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consclidated financial
statements,

Non-controliing interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein
Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the ¢riginal business combination and the non-
controlling sharehoider's share of changes in equity since the date of the combination Total comprehensive income 1s attributed
to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The Group has contractual arrangements with other parties that have |oint control of the arrangement and have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement. Under IFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures depending on the contractual rights and ohligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of 1s joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method




LGC Science Group Hoidings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are nitially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or iosses and movements in other comprehensive mcome When the
Group's share of fosses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the jaint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net invesiment in the joint ventures}, the Group does nof recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures arg eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transacticn provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group. There has been no impact on the financial position, comprehensive income or cash flows of the Group

Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments such as derivatives and non-financial assets at fair value The Group uses valuation
techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable Nputs.

All assets and habilities for which fair value 1s measured or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement, as follows.

+« lLevel 1~ Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets far identical assets or liabiiities;

« level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the towest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement ig directly or
indirectly observable; and

« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the fowest jevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement 1s
unobservable.

The Group determines each year whether transfers have occurred between levels of the hierarchy
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised on the sale of goods and services based on the transfer of control of goods and services to customers
under contracts. Five indicators of transfer of control are:

+  Transfer of risks and rewards

«»  Transfer of legal title

« Right to payment for asset

*  Transfer of physical possession
s  Customer acceptance

To recognise revenue in accordance with the transfer of control of goods and services a five step model is appiied to contracts,
or appraopriate groupings of contracts with similar characteristics on a portfolio basis-

+  dentify the contracts with a customer

+ Identify the separate performance obligations in the contract

+«  Determine the transaction price

+  Allocate the fransaction price to the separate performance obligations
. Recognise revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation

- LG Science Graup Holdings Limited”
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Customers confract with the Group to purchase goods and services that are the output of the Greup's ordinary activities in
exchange for consideration over the contract term There are five elements of a contract.

+  Approved

¢ Rights of each party identified
« Payment terms identified

« Commercial substance

*  Collectability

Contract modifications which represent a change to the scope of the contract and the price of the contract are accounted for as
separate contracts Otherwise, the contract modificatien is accounted for prospectively if remaining goeds and services from a
contract are distinct from the goods and services before the modification, and retrospectively where the goods and services are
not distinct

A performance obligation 1s a promise to provide a distinct good or service or a series of distinct goecds or services.

A performance obligation is distinct where

+« A customer can benefit from the good or service erither on its own or together with other resources that are readily availlable
to the customer, and

+ The good or service Is separately dentifiable from other promises in the contract:

not an input into combined output specified by customer

does not significantly modify or customise another good or service promised in the contract

not highly dependent on, or highly interrelated with, other goods or services promised in the contract

not limited to these factors

0o o O

Performance obligations under a contract are considered to be a series of distinct goods or services where the performance
obligations are substantially the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer:

+ Each distinct good or service meet the criteria to be satisfied cver time, and
« Same method to measure progress toward satisfaction of the performance obligation for each distinct good or service.

Where considered to be a series of distinct geods or services the performance obligations are treated as a single performance
cbligation, and revenue is recognised in the most appropriate way to measure completion of the performance obligation over time
that best depicts the transfer of goods and services

The transaction price represents the amount of consideration in a contract to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring promised goods or services. This is usually straight forward for the Group, being the price per good or service
fixed per the contract.

On contracts with vanable consideration, this 1s predicted considering past business practice and whether an amount of
consideration 1s contingent or a future event. Vanable consideration for the Group includes discounts, volume rebates and
royalties, warranties and rights of return Variable consideration is predicted using the most appropriate methed for each contract

= Expected value representing the sum of probability weighted events, which is more appropriate for a large number of
contracts with similar characteristics
« Most iikely amount, which is most appropriate for a contract with only two possible outcomes

The Group typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as reguired by law These
assurance-type warranties are accounted for under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets Refer to the
accounting peilcy on warranty provisions in section ‘Provisions’ The Group alse provides service type warranty on various goads
and services, which are accounted far under revenue recognition




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019
2. Accounting policies {continued)

The Group considers that, at contract inception, the period between when the entity transfers a promised good or service fo a
custormer and when the customer pays for that good or service wili be one year or less, and as such does not adjust the transfer
price for the effects of a significant financing component.

Consideration payable to customer, such as rebates, reduces the fransaction price, uniess payment i3 in exchange for a distinct
good or service transferred to the company by the customer.

The transaction price is not otherwise adjusted for collectability

The transactian price is allocated to separate performance objectives based on the relative standalone seiling prices, which are
generally directly observable for the Group.

Discounts are allocated to ail performance objectives relative ta their stand-alone selling prices, as is other vanable consideration
excepting where variable consideration clearly relates to a single performance obligation and is applied to that singie performance
obligation

Revenue is recognised as a performance obligation is satisfied. A performance obligation is satisfied when control of the good or
service passes 1o the customer:

«  Ability to direct the use of the good or service, including restricting other companies right to use the good or service
. Obtain substantially alf of the remaining benefit or can be consumed immediately, as with services

Control, from the customers perspective, can fransfer:

. Over time, where-

o  The customer simuitaneously receives and consumes the benefit

o Performance creates or enhances asset customer controls

o Performance does not create an asset with alternative use for entity, and right to payment for work to date.
. iIf not over time, then control transfers at a paint in time

When the performance objective is satisfied over time, a method must be used to measure progress over time and revenue which
should be recognised:

. QOutput method direct measuraments of the value transferred to the customer

. Input method- efforts to satisfy the performance abligation

« Time based mathod, where the performance obligation is satisfied evenly over a period of time, or the Group stands ready
obligation o perform over time

+« Right to invoice’ as a practical expedient where the Group has a right to consideration from a customer in an amount that
corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity’s performance completed to dats, the Group recognises
revenue in the amount to which the entity has a nght to invoice

The incremental costs of obtaining contracts are recognised as an asset if the Group expects to recover them As a practical
expedient, the Group recognises the incremental costs of abtaining a contract as an expense when incuired if the amorhsation
period of the asset that the entity otherwise would have recognised is one year or fess.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right {0 consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs
by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset
is recognised for the earned censideration that is conditional. For the Group these contract assets represent accrued income.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of fime is
required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section 'Financial
instruments — indial recognition and subsequent measurement’.
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract hiability is the obligation to transfer gocds or services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration {or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a custormer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or
services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabiiities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract For the Group contract liabilities
present deferred income and payment received on account.

Government grants
Government grants in respect of capital expenditure are credited to a deferred income account and are released to profit over the

useful lives of the relevant assets by equal annual instalments.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity cperates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in the
Group’s presentation currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing at the date of the transaction at
spot rates or the contracted rate +f the transaction is covered by a forward foreign currency contract. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranstated into the respective functional currency of the entity at the rates prevailing on
the reperting period date Foreign exchange gains and losses arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are presented
in the income statement. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded
in the Income statement.

Non-monetary items measured that are measured n terms of histoncal cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the inihal transactions. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retransiated at the rates prevaning on the initial transaction dates.

For group companies that have a functionzal currency different from the presentation currency, assets and habilities are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet and the resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income

Goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recogrused 1n other comprehensive income

Current and deferred income tax
The tax ingome for the period comprises current and deferred tax Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except that a change
attributable to an item of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income is aiso recognised directly in other

comprehensive income or directly to equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consclidated financial statements and on unused tax losses or tax credits in the Group Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reperiing date and a valuation allowance 1s set up against
deferred tax assets so that the net carrying amount equals the highest amount that is more likely than nect to be recovered based
on current or future taxable profit.




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)

investments

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for impairment In its separate financial statements the Company
recognises its investments in subsidiaries at cost lncome is recognised from these invesiments only it relation to distributions
recewed from post-acquisition profits. Distributions received in excess of post-acquisition prefits are deducted from the cost of the
investment.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of financial positton at cost, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes directly attributable incremental costs incurred in their acquisition and
installation When significant parts of assets are required to be replaced at intervals, such parts are recognised as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciated accordingly All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the income
statement as incurred.

The asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
income statement.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and eguipment, other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the original
cost or valuation, less estimated residual value, of each asset evenly over its expected useful life, as follows:

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Freehold Buildings 40 years

Short-term leasehold buildings lesser of 5-14 years or period of lease
Building plant 5-12 years

Scientific equipment 3-15 years

Other gquipment 2-5 years

The assets' residual values, usefu! lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively if appropriate.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition Following initial recognition, intangible assets are catried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any accumutated impairment losses, If any. internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in the income statement in the period to
which the expenditure relates.

Goodwill

Goodwilt arising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess af the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the \dentifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the entity recognised at the date of acquisition. Geodwill
1s initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment Josses, if any.
Goodwill is held in the currency of the acquired entity and revaiued to the closing rate at each reporting period date. Any contingent
consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, is measured at fair value with the changes in fair value recognised in the 1ncome statement,




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation but is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes n
circumstances indicate a potential impairment For the purpose of mpairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combinaticn
is allocated to each of the CGUs, or groups of CGUs, that 1s expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit
or group of units to which the goodwill 1s allocated represents the lowest leve! within the entity at which the goodwill 1s monitored
for internai management purposes. Goodwill is menitored at the operating segment level,

Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is recognised directly in the income statement. On dispgsal of a subsidiary or a jointly
controlied entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or joss recognised in the iIncome
statement on dispcsal

Trademarks and licences
Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown at historical cost

Tradernarks, licences (including software) and customer-refated intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date

Trademarks, licences and customer-related intangible assets have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, if any

Research and development
Research costs are expensed as incurred Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible

asset when the Group can demonstrate

»  The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale;
« fisintention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset;

= How the asset will generate future ecanomic benefits,

¢+ The availability of resources to complete the asset; and

«  The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is cammed at caost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation of the asset begins when development I1s compiete and the
asset is available for use It is amortised over the period of expected future benefit During the period of development, the asset
is tested for impairment annually,

Amortisation
Amortisation is provided on intangible assets so as to write off the cost, less any estimated residual value, over their expected

useful economic life as follows

Asset class Amortisation method and rate
IP and other intangibles straight line over period between & and 19 years
Internally generated development costs straight ine over period between 2 and 5 years

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying values of non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount 1s the higher cf an asset's fair vaiue less costs to sell and its value in use.

Financial assets

Initial recogniticn and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, far value through other

comprehensive income (OCH), and fair value through profit or loss

LG Science Group Hoidings Himited- [+
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

2. Accouniing policies (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characienstics
and the Group's business mode! for managing them. With the exception of trade recewvables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group inttially measures & financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, fransaction costs Trade recevables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 Refer to the accounting policies in section ‘Revenue’.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, # needs to give rise to
cash flows that are ‘solely payments of pnncipal and interest (SPP!) an the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is
referred to as the SPP! test and 1s performed at an instrument level.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how x manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The husiness model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting confractual cash flows, selling the financia)
assets, or both.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories-

+« Financial assets at amortised cost {debt instruments)

=  Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

=  Financial assets designated at fair value through QCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
{equity instruments)

. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost {debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amoriised cost if both of the following conditions are met.

+ The financial asset is heid within a business mede! with the objective to hold financial assets in order to colfect contractual
cash flows; and

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give nise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequentiy measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject fo
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised (n profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes loan notes.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss and computed in ihe same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost The
remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCl Upon derecognition, the cumuiative fair value change recognised in OCl i
recycled to profit or loss.,

The Group’'s debt instruments at fair value through OCi include Derivatives, which are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets heid for frading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

' LGE Sciancé Groug Holdings bimited | 4
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L GC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Derecognition
A financial asset (ar, where appliicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is pnmarily
derecoghised (1 e , removed from the Group's consolidated staternent of financial position) when.

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

s  The Group has transferred its rights te receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accerdance with the cantract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months
(a 12-manth ECL) For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance 1s required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the iming of the
default {(a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs Therefore, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investrnents with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amaunt of cash and are subject te an insignificant risk
of changes in vaiue Bank overdrafts are shown within barrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial posttion

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Costis determined using the first-in, first-cut (FIFO) method.

The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises direct materials, direct labour and, where applicable, attributable
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to therr present location and condition At each reporting date,
inventories are assessed for impairment If inventory is impaired, the carrying amount is reduced to its selling price less costs to
complete and sell; the impairment loss is recognised immediately in iIncome statement.

Inventories include fair value uplifts identified in accardance with IFRS 3 "Business combmnations” that are unwound through the
Consclidated income statement A key judgement is the unwind of these uplifts which is determined based on the sale of
inventaries that existed at the point of acquisition and was subject to a fair value uplift Due to the material nature of these unwinds
they are discicsed separately In the Consclidated statement of cash flows and as a material, unusual and non-recurring item in
the Consolidated income statement and note 7.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily redeemable preference shares are classified as liabilities. Equity instruments
are measured at the fair value of the cash or cther resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of Issuing the equity
instruments. If payment is deferred and the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis

oup Haldings Linited
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

2. Accounting policies {continued)

Incremental costs directly attributabie to the issue of new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as denvatives designated as hedging instruments 1n an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initiaily at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, and derivative
financial instruments

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as dascribed below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial habilitres held for trading and financial habiiities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss

Financial iabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instrumenis
in hedge relattonships as defined by IFRS 8

Gains or losses on habilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and Josses are recognised In profit or Joss when the liabilites are derecognised as well as through the EiR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or prermium on acquisition and fees or caosts that arg an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the staternent of profit or loss.

This category generally applies ta interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability 1s derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial habllity is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability The difference i the respective carrying amounts 1s recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate swaps and Interest rate caps, to hedge its interest rate
risks. Such derivative financial instruments are inttially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and
as financial fiabilities when the fair value is negative.

" tGC Science Group Holdings Limited [,
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)
Faor the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as

=  Fairvalue hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised
firm cornmitment

« Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability m cash flows that 1s either attributable to a particuiar risk
assoclated with a recognised asset or habilty or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an
unrecognised firm commitment

+« Hedges of a netinvestment in a foreign operaticn

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which it wishes
to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

Before 1 April 2018, the documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the
nature of the nsk being hedged and how the Group will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument's fair vaiue
in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows atfributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges
are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing
basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were
designated

Beginning 1 Aprit 2018, the documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the
risk being hedged and how the Group will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements
(including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio 1s determined). A hedging relationship qualifies
for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness requirements.

s There 1s ‘an economic relaticnship’ between the hedged item and the hedging mstrument.

*  The effect of credit risk does not ‘dominate the value changes’ that result from that economic relationship

«  The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group
actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged
Item

Hedges that meet all the qualifying criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument 1s recognised in OCl in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the siaternent of profit or loss The cash flow hedge reserve is adjusted to the
lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 1t is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date
and are discounted io present value where the effect 1Is material. The expense relating to any provision is presented m the income
statement net of any reimbursement.

Warranty provisions
Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when a product 18 sold or a service provided fo the customer. Initial
recognition is based on historical experience The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised annualiy

Restructuring provisions
Restructuning provisions are recogrised only when the Group has a constructive obligation, which 1s when a detailed formal ptan

identifies the business, or part of the business concerned, the location and humber of employees affected, a detailed estimate of
the asscciated costs, an appropriate timeline, and the employees affected have been notified of the plan’s main features.




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or containg, a lease is based con the substance of the arrangement at inception
date, whether fulfilment of the arrangement 15 dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a
right to use the assef, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement

Leases —~ Group as a lessee
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership {o the lessee.

Assets held under finance leases are recagnised as non-current assets of the Group at the lower of their fair value at the date of
commencement of the iease and at the present value of the minimum lease payments These assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term. The corresponding hability to the lessor is included 1n
the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation Lease payments are apportioned between finance costs in the
income statement and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Leases where the lessor retains a signsficant portion of the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating
leases and rentals payable are charged in the income statement on a straight line basis aver the lease term.

Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are recognised on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and the date of the rent review.

Leases - Group as a fessor

Leases where the Group has transferred substantially ali risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased assets to the
lessees are classified as finance leases At inception the leased asset 1s derecognised and the present value of the lease
receivable {net of initial direct costs for negotiating and arranging the lease) is recognised in the statement of financial position.
The amount receivable within one year or fess is classified as a current asset and inciuded in "Trade and other receivabies” with
the amount receivable after more than one year classified as a non-current asset and included in “Long-term recewahles”.

The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the lease receivable is recognised as unearned finance
income. Each lease payment recelved is applied against the gross investment or asset in the finance lease receivable {6 reduce
both the principal and the unearned finance income. The finance income is recognised in the income statement on a basis that
reflects a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in the finance lease receivable. Initial direct costs incurred by the
Group in negatiating and arranging finance leases are added to finance lease receivables and recognised as an expense in the
income statement over the lease term on the same basis as the lease Income

Material, unusual and non-recurring items

Material, unusual and non-recurnng items are disclosed separaiely in the financial statemenis where it is necessary to do so o
provide a better understanding of the financial performance of the Group. They are matenal items of income or expense that have
been shown separately due to the significance of their nature or amount.

Employee benefits
The Group operates various past-employment schemes, including both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans.

Defined contribution pension obligation

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which fixed contributions are paid into a separate entity and has no legal or
constructive abligations to pay further contributions if the fund does naot hold sufficient assets to pay all emplayees the benefits
refating to employee service in current or prior periods

rider Groug Haldings Limited
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2013

2. Accounting policies (continued)

For defined contribution plans contributions are paid to publicly or privately admirustered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis The Group has no further payment obligations once the centributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due If contnibution payments exceed the contribution
due for service, the excess is recognised as an asset to the extent a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available,

Defined benefit pension obligation

The Group, through the acquisition of LGC Science Group Limited, operates a defined benefit pension plan which requires
contributions to be made to separately administered funds The scheme was closed to new members on 1 October 2002 from
which time membership of a defined contribution plan became avaitable.

During 2015 the Group closed its UK defined benefit pension scheme to future accrual of benefits for current employees. The
closure of the scheme to future accrual helps align pension benefits more consistently across all of the Group’s employees and
manage volatility risk in relation to the schemes funding position. Employees impacted by this change have been provided with
transitichai benefits in respect of the Group’s defined contribution pension scheme

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined separately using the projected unit method. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation are determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated In the currency In which the tenefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pensicn obligation in countries where there 1s no deep market in such bonds,
the market rates on government bonds are used.

Re-measurements, compnsing of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptlions, the effect of the asset ceiling {excluding amounts included 1 net interest on the net defined benefit izbiity) and the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit hability), are recognised immediately
In the statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur Re-measurements are not reclassified to the income statement in subsequent pernods

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate te the net defined liability or asset The Group recognises the following
changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “Other administration and operating” in the income statement

«  Service costs compnsing current service costs, past-service cests, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine

settlements
*  Netinterest expense or income

Share-hased payments
Certain employees are granted share appreciation rights, which are settled in cash The fair value 1s measured initially and at

each reporting date up to and including the settlement date, with any changes in fair value recognised in employee benefits
expense, The Company uses the fair value of shares of its ultimate parent to determine the fair value of the share appreciation
rights The fair value of the shares in the ultimate parent are determined using a market approach, which s then benchrnarked
against precedent transactions.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, share based payments have no impact on the financial statements of the Group or of the
Company

The key assumptions used in the calculation are the maintainable earnings of the Group and the EV/earnings multiple. An increase
in the maintainable earnings of 10% would result in a fair value of £1.0m and an increase in the EViearnings multiple of 10%

would result in a fair value of £0 Sm.




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued}
2.3 New and amended standards and interpretations

The Group applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of these
new accounting standards are described below.

Several other armendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2018, but do not have an impact on the consolidated
financiai statements of the Group The Group has not early adopted any standards, interpretations or amendments that have been
issued, but are not yet effective.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 supersedes 1AS 18 Revenue and related Interpratations and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers IFRS 15 gstablishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and
reguires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled 1n
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

IFRS 15 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when
apblying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incrementai
costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract. In addition, the standard requires extensive
disclosures.

The Group adopted IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initiai application of 1 April 2018.
Under this method, the standard can be applied either to ail contracts at the date of initial application or only to contracts that are
not completed at this date. The Group elected to apply the standard to all contracts as at 1 Apr 2018

The cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 15 is recognised at the date of initial application as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings. Therefore, the comparative information was not restated and continues fo be reported under IAS
11, 1AS 18 and related Interpretations.

The effect of adopting IFRS 15 as at 1 April 2018 was, as follows.
1 April 2018

Adjustments £000
Current assets.
Trade and other recelvables (b) (202)
Total assets (202)
Retained earnings {3,364)
Total equity {3,364)
Non-current liakilities:
Deferred tax liabilities (882)
Trade and other payables:
Deferred income and payments on account (a} 4,044
Total liabilities 3,162
Total equity and liabilities 202

LGC Science Grolip Holdings Limited
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Set out below, are the amounts by which each financial statement line item is affected as at and for the year ended 31 March
20198 as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15. The adoption of IFRS 15 did not have a material impact on QCI or the Group's
operating, investing and financing cash flows. The first column shows amounts prepared under IFRS 15 and the second colurnn
shows what the amounts would have been had IFRS 15 not been adopted:

Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31 March 2019 Amounts prepared under
Reference IFRS 15 Previous IFRS Decrease
£:000 £'000 £°000
Revenue {a},(b) 387,452 387,979 (527)
Unrealised foreign exchange gains and losses 408 477 (69)
Deferred tax charge {13,654) (13,774) 120
Loss for the period from continuing cperaticns {4,829} {4,353) {476)
Loss for the penod {5,278) {4,802) {476)
Loss attributable fo equity halders of the Company {7,028) (6,550) (476}
Consclidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019 Amounts prepared under
Increase/
Reference [FRS 15 Previous IFRS ({Decrease}
£000 £000 £'000
Current assets:
Trade and other receivables (b} 74,011 74,283 (272)
Total assets 1,594,328 1,594,600 (272)
Retained earnings (92,988) (89,148) (3,840)
Total equity 551,403 555,243 (3,840)
Non-current liabilities.
Deferred tax liabilities 59,284 60,334 (1,050)
Current hiabilities
Trade and other payables (a) 101,568 96,950 4,618
Total liabilities 1,042,925 1,039,357 3,668
Total equity and liabilities 1,594,328 1,594,600 {272)

The nature of the adjustments as at 1 April 2018 and the reasons for the significant changes in the statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019 and the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 are described below:

(a) Proficiency Testing

Under previous IFRS revenue for proficiency testing was measured partly at the sending of the sample, the point at which the
invoice is raised, based on costs incurred and parily en the delivery of the final report fo the customer. Under IFRS 15 the
performance obligation is deemed to be the delivery of the final report to the customer, leading to an increase in deferred revenue.

As at 1 Apnl 2018, IFRS 15 increased Deferred income by £4,044,000, decreased Deferred tax liabilites by £838,000 and
dgecreased Retained earnings by £3,206,000. 1f aiso decreased Revenue by £457,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019

(b) Supply chain assurance
Membership fees for SASS schemes were recognised as income when billed under previous IFRS, however the performance
obligation is deemed to be satisfied over time under IFRS 15




L GC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)

As at 1 April 2018, IFRS 15 increased Deferred income by £202,000, decreased Deferred tax liabilities by £44,000 and decreased
Retained earnings by £158,000. it also decreased Revenue by £70,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 8 Financial Instruments replaces [AS 39 Financial Instfruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual pericds beginning
on or after 1 April 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for financtal instruments. classification and
measurement, impatrment; and hedge accounting

The Group applied IFRS 9 prospectively, with an initial application date of 1 April 2018. The Group has not restated the
comparative information, which continues to be reported under IAS 39. Differences arising from the adophion of IFRS 9 have been
recognised directly in retained sarnings and other components of equity

There was no effect on the Group statement of financial position of adopting IFRS 8 as at 1 April 2018

Hedge accaunting

Prior to the date of initial application, some of the Groups cash flow hedging relationships were deemed to be neffective and as
such did not qualify for Hedge accounting Under IFRS 9 criteria these refationships are deemed to qualify for hedge accounting,
but as the hedges remain ineffective this has not Jed to a change in the accounting for these ifems in the reporied financial
statements.

3. Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of historical financial information typically requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affact the reported accounts of revenue, expenses, assets and habilities and the disclesures of cantingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Assessment of impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting pohicy stated in note
2 The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determimed based on a value-in-use calculation. The key
assumptions, being the discount rate and terminal value growth rate, are disclosed in note 14.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to incame taxes in numerous jurisdictions Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax cutcome of these matiers is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the pertod in which such determination is made.

Defined benefit plans
The cost of defined benefit pension plans and the present value of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial

valuations. An actuarial valuation invoives making varicus assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due
to the complaxity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation s highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortaiity tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change

only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected
future inflaton rates for the respective countries. Further details about pension oblhigations are provided in note 23.

'LGC Science Grouip Holdings Limited |
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

4. Business combinations
(a) 2019
BioAutomation Corpaoration
On 27 April 2018 the Group acquired 100% of the ordinary capital in BioAutomaticn Corporation, manufacturer of the renowned

MerMade oligo synthesis instruments, BioAutomation is based in Irving, Texas, USA.

The amounts recognised In respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilites assumed are as set out in the table below

Total fair
value
£000

Assets and liabilities acquired
Financial assets 998
Inventory 612
Property, plant and equipment 86
Financizl habilties 378
Total identifiable assets 1,347
Goodwill 3,881
Total consideration 5,198
Total cash consideration 5,198
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (79)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 5,419

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of the business represents the premium the Group paid tc acquire the Company which
complements the existing business and creates sigmficant opportunities for cross-selling and other synergies.

From the date of acquisition, BioAutomaticn Corporation centributed £4.3m of revenue and £0 3m of profit before tax on ordinary
activities of the Group [f the combination had taken place on the first day of the financial year, revenue would have been £4.9m
and profit before tax would have been £0.5m

Berry & Associates
On 28 September 2018 the Group acquired 100% of the ordinary capital in acquired Berry and Associates, a premier supplier of

specialty oligo reagents Berry and Associates is based in Dexter, near Ann Arbor, Michigan, USA

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table below:

Total fair
value
EQQ0

Assets and liabilities acquired
Financial assets 523
Inventory 962
Property, plant and equipment 447
Firancial liabilities (123)
Total identifiable assets 1,809
Goodw)l 5,571

Total consideraticn 7,380
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at 31 March 2019

4. Business combinations (continued)

Total fair

value

£000

Tota!l cash consideration 7,380
Less. cash and cash equivalent balances acquired 129
Net cash outflow arising on acquisttion 7,251

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of the business represents the premium the Group paid to acquire the Company which
complements the existing business and creates significant opportunities for cross-selling and other synergies

From the date of acquisition, Berry & Associates contributed £1.3m of revenue and £0 3m of profit before tax on ordinary activities
of the Group If the combination had taken place on the first day of the financia! year, revenue would have been £3 Om and profit
before tax would have been £0.7m.

SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc

On 21 Novemnber 2018 the Group acquired 100% of the ordinary capial of Project Plasma Holdings Corporation, the holding
company for SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc, a manufacturer and leading partner to global in vitro diagnostics manufacturers and
clinical laboratories, and Kirkegaard & Perry Laboratories, inc SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc is based in Milford, Massachusetts,
USA, and Garthersburg, Maryland, USA.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and fiabilities assumed are as set out in the table below

Total fair
value
£000

Assets and liabilities acquired
Financial assets 21,301
Inventory 236886
Property, plant and equipment 2,384
Identifiable intangible assets 75,448
Financial liabilities (29,040)
Total identifiable assets 893,779
Goodwili 64,911
Total consideration 158,690
Total consideration 158,690
Less: deferred consideration 239
Cash pad 158,451
Less. cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (4,2086)
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition 154,245

Adjustments made o the fair value of identfiable intangible assets acquired include the value of imternally developed intellectual
properties, registered 1P and customer relationships based on the final revaluations in accordance with IFRS 3 “Businass
combinations”. The goodwill arising on the acquisition of the business represents the premium the Group paid to acquire the
Company which complements the existing business and creates significant opportunities for cross-selling and other synergies.




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

4, Business combinations (continued)

From the date of acquisition, SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc contributed £13 8m of ravenue and £0.2m of profit before tax on
ordinary activities of the Group. If the combination had faken place on the first day of the financial year, revenue would have
been £40 6m and profit before tax would have been £0 7Tm

M.B.H. Analytical Limited
On 11 December 2018 the Group acquired 100% of the ordinary capital in M.B H Analytical Limited, a leading manufacturer of

metal alloy reference materials, based in Barmnet, UK.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assurned are as set cut in the table below,

Total fair
value
£000

Assets and liabilities acquired

Financial assets 845
Inventory 2,520
Property, plant and equipment 882
Financial liabilities {387)
Total identifiable assets 4,360
Goodwill 1,075
Total consideration 5,435
Total cash consideration 5,435
Less' cash and cash equivalent balances acguired (7562)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 4,683

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of the business represents the premium the Group paid to acquire the Company which
complements the existing business and creates significant opportunities for cross-selling and other synergies

From the date of acquisttion, M.B.H, Analytica! Limited contributed £0 5m of revenue and £0 1m of profit before tax on ordinary
activities of the Group. If the combination had taken place on the first day of the financial year, revenue would have been £2.1m
and profit before tax would have been £0 5m.




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

4, Business combinations {continued)
{b) 2018

Link Technologies Limited

On 14 July 2017 the Group acquired 100% of the ordinary share capital in Link Technelogies Limited, a premier suppler of
specialty reagents for oligonucleotide synthesis, based in Belishill, UK. The acqursition is complementary to the Group's nucleic
acid chemistry business within the Genomics division.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table below

Total fair Previous fair

value value
2019 2018
£000 £000

Assets and liabilities acquired
Financial assets 857 840
Inventory 771 893
Property, plant and equipment 224 224
Financial tabilties (708) {530)
Total identifiable assets 1,154 1,427
Goodwiil 3731 3,430
Total consideration 4,885 4,857
Total consideration 4,885 4 B57
Less: deferred consideration (600} (600)
Cash paid 4,285 4257
Less cash and cash equivalent balances acquired {491} (491)
Net cash outflow arising on acguisition 3,794 3,766

The previous fair value has been revised in the period post-acquisition to reflect the final allocation of assets and liabiitres
acquired and the purchase price adjustment.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of the business represents the premium the Group paid to acquire the Company which
complements the existing business and creates significant opportunities far crass-selling and other synergies

From the date of acquisition, Link Technologies Limited contributed £2.1m of revenue and £0.6m of profit before tax to the Group
If the combination had taken place on the first day of the financial year, revenue would have been £2.9m and profit before tax
would have been £3.9m.

-Groip Holdings Limited:
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

4. Business combinations {continued)

Lucigen Corporation Inc

On 15 February 2018 the Group acquired 100% of the ordinary capital of Lucigen Corporation, a premier developsr, manufacturer
and supplier of molecular biology reagents and kits that target fast growth applications in clhinical diagnestics, drug discovery,
synthetic biology and gene editing, based in Middleton, Wisconsin, USA.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table beiow.

Total fair Previous fair

value value

2019 2018

£000 £000
Assets and liabilities acquired
Financial assets 4,476 4,476
Inventory 2,791 2,791
Property, plant and equipment 1,649 1,649
Identifiable intangible assets 22347 22347
Financial liabilities (6,163) {6,163)
Total identifiable assets 25,100 25,100
Goodwill 28,969 29,122
Total consideration 54,069 54,222
Total consideration 54,069 54,222
Less. deferred consideration {2,089) {2,089)
Cash paid 51,980 52,133
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired {1,739) {1,739)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition — revised 50,241 50,394

©On 31 July 2018 a final purchase price adjustment was made which reduced cash consideration and goodwill by £0.2m.

Adjustments made to the fair value of identifiable intangible assets acquired include the value of internally developed intellectual
properties, registered IP and customer relationships based on the final revaluations in accordance with IFRS 3 “Business
combinations” The goodwil arising on the acquisition of the business represents the premium the Group paid to acquire the
Company which complements the existing business and creates significant opportunities for cross-selling and other synergies.

From the date of acquisition, Lucigen Corporation contributed £2.2m of revenue and £0.8m of loss before tax on ordinary
activities of the Group If the combination had taken place at the date of incarperation, revenue would have been £12 7m and
profit before tax on ordinary activities would have been £1.6m.

Allergen Control Group Inc

On 29 March 2018 the Group acquired 100% of the ordinary capital In Allergen Control Group Inc, operator of the leading gluten-
free certification programme, based near Ontario, Canada The cost of the acquisition was £0.6m including £0 4m of goodwill
and £0 2m of net assets Due to the immatenal nature of this acquisition, the full disciosure required under IFRS 3 "Business
cembinations” has not been presented.




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited

Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

5, Revenue

(a) Disaggregated revenue information

Goods and services

Sale of goods
Rendering of services

Performance Obligations

Reference materials, Oligos, PCR and NGS
Specialised therapeutic services and Lab
services

Proficiency testing

Supply chain assurance

Instruments, Service and Software

National laboratory and science

Other

(b} Contract balances

Revenue recognised (n the reporting period included in contract habilites at the beginning of the period was £26.8m. There was
no revenue recognised in the reporting period from performance obligations satisfied or partially satisfied in previous periods

The timing of revenue recagnition, invoicing and cash collections results in trade receivables, accrued income {contract assets)
and payments received on account (contract liabilities) on the Group Statement of financial position. The Group typically invoices
and recognises revenue when goods are dispatched, or under the night to invoice practical expedient. Where the Group has a
right to consideration from a customer in an amount that corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's
performance completed to date, the Group recognises revenue in the amount te which the entity has a right to inveice. Where
the terms of shipping differ from this the revenue is deferred to later periods when the perforrmance obligation 1s satisfied, and
where payments are received in advance of invoicing these are held as contract fiabilities on the Statement of financial position
until the revenue is invoiced Where performance obligations have been fulfilled, but the work has not been invoiced revenue

2019 2018
£000 £000

265,147 217,585
118,305 113,608

387,452 331,191

2019
£006
224,448
44 567

42,835
30,391
14,455
25,390

5365

387,452

will be accrued and recognised on the Statement of financial pesition as accrued income.

Changes in the contract asset and contract liability batances were not materially impacted by other factors

=TT EGE Sclenics Group Holdings:imited |,
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

5. Revenue (continued)
(c) Performance obligations

When Performance
Obligation is Typically When Payment is typically How Stand-alone Selling

Performance Obligation Satisfied due Price is typically estimated
Refere terial d
glerence Materils an Shipment of the goods 30-90 days from Invoicing Directly observatble
Products
Drug Devel t Lab Del .
rug Development and La elivery of report to 30-90 days from invoicing Directly observable
services customer
Proficiency testing Delivery of report to 30-90 days from invoicing Directly observable
customer
. Delivery of report to L
Supply chain assurance 30-90 days from invoicing Directly observable
customer
Instruments, Servic d .
" e, ean Shipment of the goods 30-90 days from invoicing Directly cbservable
Software
Naticnal laborat d bi f n
adonai laboratory an istnbution _O agreed funds 30-90 days from invoicing Directly observable
Grant Management for autherised purpeses

(d) Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations

Under the practical expedient the Group has not disclosed information about the aggregate amount of transaction price allocated
to unsatisfied performance objectives, as the Groups contracts meet at least one of the two conditions

«  The criginal expected duration of the underlying coniract is one year or less; or
+ The Group recognises revenue from the satisfaction of performance obligation under the right to invoice practical expedient

(please see Contract balances section above)

6. Group operating profit

This is stated after charging /(crediting)’ 2019 2018
£000 £000

Auditor's remuneration - audit fees 625 485
- corporate finance advisory 221 422

- taxation services 81 20

Depreciation expense 15,048 12,215
Amortisation of intellectual property 26,377 22,218
Amortisation of development costs 2,361 722
Operating lease rentals - land and buildings 6,255 5,643
- plant and machinery 1,026 1,853

Foreign exchange (gains) and losses (408) 3,620

Research and development expense 23,985 24,601




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

7. Material, unusual and non-recurring items

Within the Consolidated incame statement, items that are matenal, either because of their size or their nature, or that are unusual
or non-recurring, are presented within the line items to which they best relate

In order to provide users with addifional information to assist their understanding of the Consolidated income statement,
“Adjusted EBITDA" 1s presented as an alterpative performance measure

Adjusted EBITDA is operating profit before unrealised foreign exchange gains and jossas, depreciation, amortisation, material,
unusual and non-recurning items Adjusted EBITDA 18 not specifically defined under, nor presented in accordance with 1FRS.

Adiusted EBITDA is one of the Group’s key performance indicators and is monitored by Management, investors, Lenders and
other stakeholders as a measure of recurring, comparable, underlying performance. Adjusted EBITDA provides a meaningful
camparison of how the Group’s perfermance is managed and measured on a day-to-day basis by key stakeholders.

You should not therefore consider it as an alternative to profit / loss for the year as deterrmned in accordance with IFRS. Matenal,
unusual and non-recurring items in the year are as follows.

2019 2018

£000 £000

Unwind of inventory fair value step ups 8,024 10,127
Costs associated with mergers and acquisitions 8,448 4,229
Costs of integrating acquisitions 6,250 3,790
Costs associated with the disposal of the Forensics & Securnty business 155 3,462
Restructunng and rearganisation costs 2,734 2,677
KKR integration costs 757 1,125
Costs associated with the purchase of LGC Science Group Limited - 545
27,368 25,955

Unwind of inventory fair vaiue step ups are in line with the accounting policy disctosed in note 2, which have a material impact
on the profit performance of the Group until such time as they are fully unwound

Costs associated with mergers and acquisittions principally relate te financial and commercial due diligence, advisory fees,
deferred consideration expensed under IFRS 3 and adjustments to acquisition net assets outside of the IFRS 3 measurement
period

The cost of integrating acquisitions relates to one off costs to restructure the acquired businesses and costs to bring processes
and systems in line with LGC.

The costs associated with the disposal of the Forensics & Secunty business relate to financial and commercial due diligence,
legal and adviscry fee and corporate finance fees.

Restructunng, rearganisation and other initiative costs refiect the costs associated with restructuning and reorganisation projects
and include termination payments, cessation costs, advisory fees and other similar payments They also include other specific
items that are matenal, either because of their size or their nature, or that are unusual or non-recurring, and would otherwise
impalr the users understanding of recurring, underlying performance.

KKR integration costs relate to material non-recurring projects that were instigated by KKR following the acquisition of LGC
Science Group Limited.

Costs assocrated with the purchase of LGC Science Group Limited are advisory fees.

nice Groug, Holdings Limitect |
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

8. Finance income and cost

201% 2018
£000 £000
Finance income
interest income on bank deposits 477 138
Gain on foreign exchange forward contracts 398 440
Total Finance income 8§75 579
2018 2018
£000 £000
Finance cost
interest on bank overdrafts and borrowings (39,719) (33,593)
Interest on Long-term loan notes (572} (519)
Amortisation of debt issue costs (2,880) (2,607}
Interest rate cap (793) (390)
Coptich exercised (1,428} -
Other finance costs (245) {297)
Total Finance cost (45,637) {37,406)
9. Staff costs and Directors remuneration
(a) Staff costs
The aggregate payroll costs (including Directors’ remuneration) were as follows
2019 2018
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 129,825 108,832
Social security costs 13,170 11,464
Other pension costs 4,725 3,670
147,720 123,966

There has been no expense on share base payment schemes recognised in the year.

Inciuded in other pensicn costs are £218,000 (2018: £165,000) in respect of the defined benefit scheme and £4,517,000 (2018
£3,505,000} in respect of the defined contnbution scheme

The average numter of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the pened, analysed by category was as
follows:

2019 2018
No. No.

Average monthly number of employees
Screntific 1,464 1,282
Administration and management 1,140 1,003
Continuing operations 2,604 2,285
Discontinued operations - 341
2,604 2,628

There were no staff employed by the Company during the pericd {2018 None)




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

9. Staff costs and Directors remuneration (continued)

{b} Directors’ remuneration

The Directors’ remuneration for the period was as fallows, 2019 2018

£000 £000

Aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services 2,170 2,148

2019 2018

No. No.

The number of Directors receiving remuneration dunng the period -] 6
The number of Directors accruing benefits under a defined contribution pension scheme 6

2015 2018

£000 £000

Aggregate remuneration in respect of the highest paid Director 734 746

During the period, the Group made contributions of £24,000 (2018: £16,000) to defined contribution pension schemes on behalf
of the Directors

The Company believes that key management persannel as defined in 1AS 24 is comprised solely of the statutory Directors of the
Company. As such, no additional disclosures are provided in respect of key management personne!
10. Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations in the Consolidated income statement consists of the Forensics and Security business, which was sold

in October 2017 for cash proceeds of £30.3m, the ParaDNA business and the Residues business. The following table
summarises the resuits of discontinued operations®

2049 2018

£000 £000
Revenue 265 28,623
Expenses (714) (31,899)
Loss before tax from discontinued operations {449) (3,276)
Tax expense on Joss ~ -
Loss for the period from discontinued operations (449} (3,276)

The amount in the comparative Consolidated income statement recognised in respect of the loss on dispesal comprises the
£30 3m cash proceeds less the fair value of business related assets of £46.9m.

'Eiéncé:_étdup ‘Heldings Limited
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l.GC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

11. Taxation
Tax credited in the income statement:

{a) Analysis of charge credit in period:

2019 2018
Current tax £000 £000
UK income tax charge 230 304
Adjustments in respect of current UK income tax of previous years B4 -
Foreign tax 6,219 7,182
Adjustments in respect of current Foreign income tax of previous years 2,599 998
Total current tax 9,112 8,484
Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temparary differences (11,282) {15,993)
Adjustments in respect of previous years {2,372) {3,935)
Change in rates -
Total deferred tax (13,654) {19,928)
Toftal tax income for the period {4,542) 11,444)
Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income
Deferred tax related to items recognised in other comprehensive income during the
pericd:
Employee defined benefit plans / foreign exchange rate revalustion 2,187 355

{b) Factors affecting tax income for the period:

The tax on loss before tax for the period 1s higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2018 19%) The
differences are reconciled below

2019 2018
£000 £000
L.oss from continuing operations hefore taxation (9,371) (31,712}
Loss from discontinued operations before taxation (449 {3,278)

(9,820) (34,988)

Corporation tax at standard rate of 19% (1,868) (6,648)
Effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2,869 7,314
Adjustments with respect to prior years 298 (2,937)
Tax effect of losses not previously recognised -
Higher foreign tax rates on cverseas earnings 1,531 82
Movement in unrecognised deferred taxes {2,125} (6,119,
Patent Box (80) {53}
Rate change adjustment {4,625} (3,071}
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax assets (195) 79
Greup rehef received / surrendered for mil payment (349) 1)

Minonty Interest
Total tax for the period (4,542) (11,444)




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

11. Taxation (continued)
(¢) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax relates to the following.

2019 2018
£000 £000
Accelerated tax depreciation 3,972 4,485
intangibles (75,047) {64,219)
inventory (1,543) (3,518)
Goodwill {12,462) {7,764)
General provisions - incl bad debt 275 91
Pensions - defined conirbution {160) 1,785
Pensions spread - (61)
Foreign exchange movements (227) 43
Interest accrued [ deferred 7,171 3,101
Research and deveiopment (1,329) 113
Other timing differences 1,568 (324)
Accrued bonuses, compensation, sick pay and vacation 848 227
Interest swaps and forward contracts {33) (38)
Revaluation of tand and buildings (1,768) (1,820)
Losses 19,469 7,275
Net deferred tax liability {69,276) (60,624)
Reflected in the statement of financial position as foliows:
Deferred tax assets 8 184
Deferred tax liabiiities {59,284) (60,808)
Net deferred tax liability (59,278) {60,624)
Reconciliation of net deferred tax liability
2019 2018
£000 £000
Opening (60,624) (81,400)
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 15 882 -
Tax mcome dunng the period recognised in the Income Statement 13,654 16,928
Tax charge during the period recognised in Other Comprehensive income (2,187) (355)
Foreign exchange movements 874 6,022
Deferred tax arising on business combinations (11,875) (4,819)
At 31 March (59,276) (60,624)

There is a deferred tax asset of £8,000 (2018: £184,000) recognised in the statement of financial position.

Group companies have tax losses carried forward at 31 March 2019 of approximately £134.4m (2018: £73 4m). Of the related
deferred tax asset of £24.0m (2018' £13 3m), £1.8m (2018 £1.8m) has been recognised to offset the deferred tax liability on
future capital gain on land and buildings and £18.1m (2018: £5.5m) recognised to offset against future taxable profit in accordance
with [AS 12. The remaining deferred tax asset of £4.0m (2018 £6 Om) has not been recognised as the recognition cniteria of IAS
12 have not been met.

Group companies have depreciation in excess of capital allowances of approximately £29.8m (2018: £34.3m) The related
deferred tax asset is £4.0m (2018 £4.5m) which has been recognised in accardance with IAS 12.

The prior year presentation of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilities has been restated so that, in accordance with
IAS 12, deferred tax assets and deferred tax Yiabilities arising in the same tax jurisdiction have been offset.

"7 LGG Science Groiip. Haldings Eimited:

" Report and'accounts 2019




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

11. Taxation {continued)

(d) Factors that may affect future tax charges

At Summer Budget 2015, the government announced legisiation setting the Ceorperation Tax main rate at 19% for the years
starting the 1 Aprii 2017, 2018 and 2019 and at 18% for the year starting 1 April 2020. At Budget 2016, the government announced
a further reduction to the Corporation Tax main rate (for all profits except ring fence profits) for the year starting 1 Apnl 2020,

setting the rate at 17%.

The deferred tax on temperary differences and tax losses as at 31 March 2019 was calculated at the rate applicable to the year
in which the temporary differences and tax losses are expected to reverse.

12. Result attributable to members of the Company

As permitted by section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company's income statement has not been included in these
financial statements The profit dealt with In the financial statements of the Company was £33,219,000 {(2018. profit of

£53,560,000)




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
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at 31 March 2019

13. Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Short-ferm

land and leasehold Building Scientific Other
buildings buildings Plant equipment Equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Group
Cost:
At 31 March 2017 40,338 6,627 6,870 23,305 10,530 88,330
Acquisitions - 667 1,081 75 68 1,891
Additicns 1,150 4,748 363 10,402 9,587 26,250
Transfers (220) 462 (789) 18 529 -
Disposals (422) (359) (1,811} (2,386) (1,315) (6,293)
Foreign exchange translation {897) (507) (76) {495) (257) (2,232)
At 31 March 2018 39,949 11,638 5,638 31,519 19,202 107,946
Acquisitions 1,385 562 100 1.258 5894 3,899
Additions 1,227 2,936 3,879 11,733 4,938 24,713
Transfers - - - - {2,358) (2,356)
Disposals - (18) (30} (184) (98) (327)
Foreign exchange transiation 553 437 74 399 170 1,633
At 31 March 2019 43114 15,558 9,661 44,725 22,450 135,508
Depreciation:
At 31 March 2017 1,131 918 1,354 5,640 3,081 12,124
Charge for the period 1,135 829 966 5,985 3,780 12,695
Disposals {18) {143) {400) (672) (228) (1.459)
Transfers (79) 192 (378) {68} 333 -
Foreign exchange transiation (38) {108} (45} (234) {123) (548)
At 31 March 2018 2,133 1,688 1,497 10,651 65,843 22,812
Charge for the period 938 1,864 581 7,146 4,533 15,082
Disposals - (8) {4) {40} {72) (124)
Transfers - - - - (832) (532)
Foreign exchange translation 45 121 11 165 91 433
At 31 March 2019 3,116 3,665 2,085 17,922 10,863 37,651
Net book value:
At 31 March 2019 39,598 11,883 7,576 26,803 11,587 97,857
At 31 March 2018 37,816 9,950 4,144 20,868 12,359 85,134

The element of land included in the net book value of freehold land and buildings at 31 March 2018 is £13.9m {2018 £13 9m).

No assets are held under finance leases.

LGC Scieriee Grai Holdigs Limited
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Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

14, Intangible assets

Internaily
IP and generated
Other development Total

Goodwill intangibies Costs Intangibles
Group £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost:
At 31 March 2017 800,662 346,165 5,569 1,152,396
Acquisiticns 26,018 32,354 - 58,373
Other additions - 2,379 2,66% 4,848
Transfers - (244) 244 -
Disposals {27.,517) {14,800) {2,258) {44,575)
Foreign exchange translation (28,525) (12,970) {350) {41,845)
At 31 March 2018 770,639 352,834 5,774 1,128,297
Acquisiticns 75,628 75,448 - 151,076
Cther additions - 14,234 4,584 18,818
Transfers - 1,053 1,303 2,356
Disposals - {119) (58) (177)
Foreign exchange translation 18,468 8,291 310 27,069
At 31 March 2019 864,735 451,7H1 11,913 1,328,439
Amortisation:
At 31 March 2017 - 21,132 522 21,654
Charge for the pericod - 22,837 1,080 23,927
Disposals - (1,389) (652) (2,041)
Foreign exchange translation - (1,058) (34) {1,092}
At 31 March 2018 - 41,5622 926 42,443
Charge for the period - 28,377 2,361 28,738
Disposals - (17) (10) (27)
Transfers 69 463 532
Foreign exchange translation - 895 18 913
At 31 March 2019 - 68,846 3,758 72,604
Net book value:
At 31 March 2018 864,735 382,945 8,155 1,255,835
At 31 March 2018 770,639 311,362 4,848 1,086,849

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested annually for impairment using a value-in-use calculation.
The discounted cash flows are based on the approved three year plan with an extrapoiation and terminal growth rate thereafter.

For the purposes of impairment testing, the Group considers there to be three CGUs. The CGUs and key assumptions used in
the estimation of the recoverable amounts are;

CGU Discount rate Terminal value
growth rate
% %o
Standards 7.9 25
Genomics 9.6 25

HS&l 83 25




LGC Science Group Hoeldings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

14. Intangible assets (continued)

The discount rates and terminal growth rates were provided by an independent third party advisor and management considers
them to be prudent and reflective of the risk associated with each CGU

Management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the key assumphons would result in the carrying value of
any CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

15. Investments

Company

As at 31 March 2017 the Company held 100% of the entire share capital of its subsidiary, LGC Science Group Limited and 21%
of the share capital of its subsidiary, LGC Whirlwind Limited. 1n the year to 31 March 2018 the Company sold its investment in
LGC Whirlwind Limited to LGC Science Group Limited in exchange for newly issued shares in that company in the year to 31
March 2019 the company acquired 100% of the newly issued ordinary shares of its subsidiary, LGC Science Group Limited.

£000
At 31 March 2017 277,981
Acquisttions 58,832
Disposals (58,832)
At 31 March 2018 277,981
Acquisitions 158,502
At 31 March 2018 436,483

Details of the investments in which the Group holds 20% or more of the nominal value are disclosed in note 31

C Scignce Grolp Hotdings Limited™ | ~ 0
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

16. Long-term receivables

Group 2018 2018
Piant and equipment investment £000 £000
Minimum lease rentals receivable 841 781
Estimated residual value 12 11
Gross investment 853 792
Unearned finance income (138) (128)
Present value of the minimum lease rentals receivable 714 663

Total minimum lease rentals receivable

Within 1 year 445 230
Within 2-5 years 356 551
841 781

Present value of the total minimum iease rentals receivable

Within 1 year 340 222
Within 2-5 years 362 430
Residual value 12 i1

714 663

The Group 15 a lessor in 2 non-cancellakble leveraged lease agreement entered into during 2017 At the end of the lease term
the lessee has the option to purchase the equipment being leased, otherwse the equipment wilf be returned to the Group The
Group has taken into account the unrealised portion of deferred interest and related deferred tax. Interest income is recognised
when received

2019 2018
Company £000 £000
Long-term loan notes {including accrued interest) 1,660,819 735,111
Preference shares (including accrued interest} - 264,567
Amounts owed from subsidiary undertakings 116,323 -

1,177,142 999,678

Long-term loan notes

The Long-term loan notes are accruing interest of between 7.5% and 15% per annum. The Company has not impaired long-
term loan notes on the basis that a review of recovery strategies indicate that the outstanding balances of the loans wauld be
fuily recovered, and the time period to realise cash wouid be short such that the effect of discounting woutd be immaterial.

Preference shares

On 8 March 2016 the Company acquired alt of the preference shares of LGC Science Group Limited, which are accruing a
dividend at 10% per annum In the year to 31 March 2019 LGC Science Group Limited converted its preference shares in to
ordinary shares

17. Inventories

Group Group

2019 2018

£000 £000

Raw materials and consumables 18,732 11,758
Work in progress 15,105 17,533
Finished goods 52,587 27,145

86,424 56,436




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

18. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
Net trade receivables

Other receivables

Accrued income

Prepayments

The fair value of those trade and other receivables classified as financial instrument loans and receivables are disclosed in the

financial Instruments note.

The Group's exposure to credit and market risks, Inciuding ympairments and alfowances for credit [osses, relating fo {rade and
ather receivables is disclosed in the financial nsk management and impairment note.

Trade receivables above include amounts (detailed below) that are past due at the end of the reporting period and which an
allowance for doubtful debts has not been recognised as the amounts are still considered recoverable and there hasn't been a

significant change in credit quality

Age of trade receivables not impaired

Not Due

Past Due

1 to 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
>30 days

19. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank
Short-term deposits

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on dally bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the

respective short-term deposit rates.

Group Group
2019 2018
£000 £000

57,383 47,881

{2,395) (813)

54,888 48 968
4,602 2218
8,659 7,078
5762 4,808

74,011 61,069

Group Group
2019 2018
£000 £000

39,682 32,360

10,325 8,698
2,500 2,449

866 1,538
4,010 2,836

17,701 15,521

57,383 47,881

Group Group
2019 2018
£000 £000

58,619 40,578

357 1,238

58,976 41,816

Inciuded within Cash at bank s £13.1m (2018: £11.4m) which is not immediately availabie for use in the business.

1'GC Science Group Haidings Limited
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

20. Issued share capital
Group and Company

Allotted and issued fully paid share capital

Share Share
capital premium Total
2019 2018 2019 2019
Number £000 £0090 £000
A Ordinary shares of £1 each 60,493,189 60,493 544,439 604,932
2018 20138 2018 2018
Number £000 £000 £000
A Ordinary shares of £1 each §6,582,484 56,582 509,242 565,824

Curing the period, the Group and Company issued ordinary shares. as table below.

2019 2019 2019 2019
A Ordinary shares of £1 each Number £ £ £
Issued on 4 December 2015 1 1 - 1
Issued on 8 March 2016 54,582,483 54,582,483 491,242,352 545,824,835
Issued on 27 January 2017 2,000,000 2,000,000 18,000,000 20,000,000
At 31 March 2018 56,582,484 56,582,484 508,242,352 565,824,836
Issued on 19 November 2018 3,910,705 3,910,705 35,196,345 39,107,050
At 31 March 2019 60,493,189 60,493,189 544,438,697 604,931,886

A Ordinary shares are voting shares and carry rights to receive dividends.

21. L.oans and borrowings

Group 2019 2018
£000 £000

Non-current icans and borrowings
Bank borrowings 856,226 674,128
Long-term loan notes (including accrugd interest) 8,277 5,707
862,503 679,835
Company 2019 2018
£000 £000

Non-current loans and borrowings
Bank borrowings 856,226 674,128
Long-term loan notes (including accrued interest) 14,756 -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 80,324 15,130

951,306 689,258




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

21. Loans and borrowings (continued)

Bank borrowings

QOn 8 March 2016 in order to make available funding to acquire L.GC Science Graup Limited (and associated undertakings) and
repay debt, the immediate parent company entered into a Seror Facilthies Agreement and Second Lien Facility Agreement. The
facilties include a committed multicurrency revolving credit facinty, of which £nil was drawn at 31 March 2019 (2018. £19m) The
total committed and undrawn facilities under the Senior Facilites Agreement at 31 March 20198 were £38m (2018 £31m)

The syndicated ioan facility 1s secured on the assets of the Company and certain of ts subsidiary undertakings. The loans bear

interest at rates of LIBOR + 3.25%-6 75% for USD denominated lcans and EURIBOR + 3.25%-6 5% for EUR denominated
loans.

Long-term loan notes
The Long-term loan notes are accruing interest of between 10% per annum.

22. Operating leases
The Group has entered intc commercial lease agreements.

The total future value of minmum lease payments is as follows.

Group Group Group Group

Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings Other
2019 2019 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Within one year 7,049 667 B6.524 B899
In two fo five years 19,487 275 18,358 367
In over five years 14,224 1 15,934 22
40,760 943 40,816 1,088

The amount of non-cancellabie operating iease payments recognised as an expense during the perod was £7.3m (2018. £7 5m}

23. Pension and other schemes

(a) Defined contribution pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contricution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds The pension cost charge for the period represents contributions payable by the
Group to the scheme and amounted to £4, 517,000 (2018. £3,966,000). At the end of the period contributions of £371,000 (2018-
£282,000) were outstanding.

Contributions of £4,700,000 (2018: £4,100,000) are expected to be made to the plan in the next financial year
{b) UK Defined benefit pension scheme

The Group cperates a defined benefit funded pension scheme, the assets of the scheme are held in 3 trustee fund which required
contribution to be made to a separately administered fund. The scherme is a UK-based defined benefit scheme, providing benefits
at retirement and on death. The scheme was closed to future accrual on 31 March 2014. The closure of the scheme ta future
accrual reduces future volatility risk and helps align pension benefits more cansistently across all of the Group's empioyees

cle SéiéncefGroiip Holdings kimftect
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

23. Pension and other schemes {continued)

In accordance with 1AS 18 (R) re-measurements, comprising of actuariai gains and losses, excluding net interest costs are
recognised immediately In the finangial positon with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other
comprehensive income in the penod in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
penods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate fo the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the
foliowing changes in the net defined benefit obligation under 'cost of sales’, 'administration expenses’ and 'other external expenses’
In consolidated statement of profit or loss (by nature).

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curfalments and non-

routine settlements
- Net interest expense or income

The expected contributions to the plan for the next reporting peried are £nil

The scheme was most recently valued on 1 July 2015 The most recent full funding assessment was as at 1 July 2015 and the
results, benefit structure and data were summansed to the trustees in October 2015 The benefit structure has not ehanged since
the funding assessment.

The International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) of the International Accounting Standards Board has
issued statement IFRIC14 that deals with how surpiuses in IAS19 are approached within the employer's accounts:

a) only allows a surplus at the accounting date to be recognised in the accounts If the employer has an unconditional nght to it at
some future date H the employer does not have a nght to it, then the surplus recognised cannot be bigger than the present value
of the future service cost less the present value of the contributions for future service committed to in the Schedule of Contributions

b) requires an additional lability to be recognised if the employer 1s obliged te pay future centributions and wili not be able to
recover these amounts in the future

Risks

Investment risk

A significant proportion of assets are invested in equities and property whereas the defined benefit obhgation vaiue depends on
the yield on long-dated corporate bonds These two asset classes can move in different directions causing the pension disclosure
on the balance sheet to improve or deteriorate rapidly The balance sheet volatility has been mitigated to an extent by meving
investment from equriies into multi asset credit investment and bonds, together with the use of a Liabiity Driven Investment (LD}

strategy.

Inflation risk
Since the pension hiability is adjusted to consumer price index, the pension pian is exposad to the UK's inflation, interest rate risks.

Reconciliation of scheme assets and fiabilities to assels and liabilities recognised
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows

2018 2018
£000 £000
Fair value of scheme assets 106,499 99,399
Present vajue of scheme liabilites (105,579) {109,221)

Defined benefit pension scheme surplus / {deficit) 920 (9,822)




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

23. Pension and other schemes (continued)

Scheme assets
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows

2019 2018

£000 £000
Fair value at start of financia! year 99,399 97,773
Interest income 2,464 2,520
Actuarnal gains and losses ansing from changes in financtal assumptions 6,342 792
Benefits paid (1,708) (1,686)
Fair vaiue at end of period 106,499 99,399
Analysis of assels
The major categones of scheme assets are as follows.

2019 2018

£000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 9,814 4,927
Equity instruments 35,764 29,288
Debt instruments 48,275 58,412
Real estate 8,835 6,772
Alternatives and others 3,811 -

106,499 99,399

Asset valuations are based on guoted market prices in an active market and investment profile of the assets.

2019 2018

£000 £000
Actual return on scheme assets 8,806 3,312

The pension scheme has not invested in any of the Company's own financial instruments or in properties or cther assets used by
the Company

Scheme liabilities
Changes in the present value of scheme liabilities are as follows:

2019 2018

£000 £000
Present vaiue at start of financial period 108,221 108,168
Actuarial gains and [osses arising from changes in financial assumptions (4,645) (1,077)
Interest cost 2,709 2,816
Benefits paid _{1,7086) {1.686)
Prasent value at end of financial period 105,579 109,221
Analysed as:
Present value of scheme liabiliities ansing from wholly or partly funded schemes {3,642) 53

) LGC Sc:ence Group Hcldlrrgs Ltmnted ‘ 58
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019
23. Pension and other schemes (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions
The significant actuanal assumptions used to determine the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the Statement of
financial position date are as follows

2019 2018
% %
Retail price inflation {RPI} 3.3G 340
Cansumer price inflation (CPI) 2.30 240
Deferred pension revaluation 230 2.40
Discount rate 240 2.50
Mertality rate 150 1.50
Future pensicn increases 315 3.25
Actual return on scheme's assets
Past retirement mortality assumptions
2018 2018
Years Years
Current UK pensioners at retirement age - male 222 27
Current UK pensioners at retirement age - femalz 23.7 24.1
Future UK pensioners at retirement age - male 239 248
Fuwre UK pensioners at retrement age - female 25.0 256
Amounts recognised in the income statement
2019 2018
£000 £000
Amounts recognised in operating profit
Recogrised in armving at operating profit - -
Amounts recognised in finance income or costs
Net interest 245 296
Total recognised in the income statement 245 296
The service cost and net interest expense are recognised in the income statement
Amounts taken to the Statement of comprehensive income
2019 2018
£000 £000
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (623) (407)
Actuarial gains and losses ansing from changes in demographic assumptions 2 448 1,718
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest income/(expense) 9162 558
Amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income 10,987 1,869

Actuarial gains and losses anse when assumptions made about the future benefits or investment returns are not realised In
practice and/or when assumptions are revised at the end of the financial year. Actuanal gains or losses are recegnised immediately
via Other cornprehensive income.




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

23. Pension and other schemes {continued)

Sensitivity analysis
A sensitivity analysis for the principal assumptions used to measure scheme liabilties is set out below

2019 2018
+0.1% -0.1% +0.1% -0.1%
Adjustment to discount rate £000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of {otal obligation (2,376) 2,449 {2,401) 2,472
2019 2018
+0.1% -0.1% +0.1% -0.1%
Adjustment to rate of inflation £000 £06O £600 £000
Present value of total obligation 1,172 (1,161) 1,336 (i,421)
2018 2018
Adjustment ta mortality age rating + 1 Year «1Year +1 Year -1 Year
assumption £000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of total obligation (4,160) 4,012 (4,094) 4,143

The scheme is a UK-based providing benefits at retirement and on death. The most recent full funding assessment was as at 1
July 2015 and the benefit structure has not changed since the funding assessment The scheme was closed to future accrual on
31 March 2014. The scheme is governed by a trustee that has a Jarge degree of control over the operation, funding and investment
strategy of the schems. The Company works with the trustees to ensure the scheme has an appropriate funding strategy that
meets legislative and regulatory requirements. Any shortfall of assets relative to funding target is financed over an appropriate
periad of time taking account of the cantribution leve! that is reasonably affordable to the spansoring employer

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 1s around 24 years (2018: 23 years)
{c) Foreign defined benefit pension schemes

The Group's subsidianes in Germany operate defined pension benefit schemes for certain employees and the funds are
administered locally The schemes have been re-measured in accordance with IAS 12(R) Actuarial gains and losses excluding
net interest costs are recegnised in the financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other
comprehensive income In the peried in which they ocour. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods

The defined benefit pension lability in the statement of financial position comprises the total for the plan at the present value of
the defined benefit obligation, based on actuarial reports, which applied a discounted rate of 1 5% (2018. 1 76%).

Reconciliation of scheme assets and liabilities to assets and fiabilities recognised

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

2019 2018
£00C £300
Present value of scheme liabilities 1,370 1,134

Group Holdings Lifrited
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

24. Provisions for liabilities and charges

2019 2018
Group £000 £000
Opening 6,367 7,001
Acquisitions 1,251 -
New 3,897 -
Utilised {2,795) (121}
Foreign exchange transiation 319 {513)

9,038 6,367

Closing

The provisions are for potentiai Iitigation, uncertain tax positions, dilapidations, legal fees and a call / put option.

25. Trade and other payables

2019 2018

Group £000 £000
Trade and other payables 28,515 20,405
Social security and other taxes 2,758 2,264
Accruals 30,846 26,757
Deferred iIncome and payments oh account 37,405 26,832
Deferred consideration 1,611 3,364
Other payables 429 366
101,568 79,988

2019 2018

Company £000 £000
Accruals 408 375

The fair value of the trade and cther payables classified as financial Instruments are disclosed in the financial instruments note.
The Group's exposure to market and liquidity nsks, including maturity analysis, related to trade and other payables is disclosed
in the financial risk management and impairment note

26. Commitments and guarantees

Capital commitrments
Amounts contracted for but not provided 1n the financial statements amounted to £884,000 (2018 £1,623,000) for the Group and

£nil (2618 £nil) for the Company

Pension commitments
Contnbutions of £4,700,000 {2018: £4,100,000) are expected to be made to the defined contribution plan in the next financial

year.

Guaraniees
The Group and other subsidiaries have provided guarantees and granted security to suppert the syndicated bank horrowing

arrangements of the Group
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at 31 March 2019
27. Financial instruments
(a) Financial assets and Liabilities

Financial assets

Carrying Fair  Carrying Fair
value value value value
2019 2019 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 58,976 58,976 41,816 41,816
Trade and other receivables * 59,580 59,590 49 184 49184
118,566 118,566 91,000 91,000

Financial liabifities
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value Value value value
2019 2019 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade and other payables ™ 97,189 97,199 74,360 74,360
Baorraowings 862,503 862,503 878,835 679 835

959,702 859,702 754,195 754,195

* Trade and other receivabies are stated excluding Prepayments and Accrued income
** Trade and other payables are stated excluding Social security and other taxes and Deferred consideration

The fair values of these financial instruments reflect market value which is not materially different to the carrying values

Derivatives:

Derivative Assets
Carrying value and Fair value 201¢ 2018

£000 £000

Derivative designated as hedging instrument -
Interest rate swaps 1,018 1,602
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Call option over royalty buyout - 1,354
Foreign exchange forward contracts 439 42

1,467 2,998

Derivative liabilities

Carrying value and Fair value 2019 2018
£000 £000

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:

Interest rate cap (1,183} -

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments.

Interest rate cap - (390)

(1,183) (390)

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments reflect the change in fair value of interest rate swaps, designated as cash flow
hedges to hedge intarest payable (USD and EUR). The cash flow hedges of expected future USD interest payments were
effective though a loss of £584,000 (2018 £1,602,000 gain) has been included in other comprehensive income in respect of
these contracts.

1 LGC Seignee Group Holdings L
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019
27. Financial instruments (continued)

Other derivative liabilities designated as hedging instruments reflect the negative change in fair value of an interest rate cap
which 1s ineffective, but 1s, nevertheless, intended to reduce the level of foreign currency nsk for interest payable (EUR). The
Group has not appled the option to designate a credit exposure as measured at fair value through P&L.

Dunng 2018, as part of the Lucigen Corporation business combination {see Note 4), a royaity buy out cption was acquired and
recognised at fair value. During 2013 the aption was exercised

The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts to manage some of its transactfion exposures These contracts are not
designated as hedging instruments but trading denvatives and are generally from 1 to 12 months. Trading derivatives are
classified as a current asset or liability and changes in value are recorded in the Income statement

The valuation of foreign exchange forward contracts was provided by HSBC Bank Plc. The valuation method was denved from
proprietary models based upon recognised financial principles and reasonable estimates about relevant future market conditions
and may reflect certain other financial factors

The Group classifies its foreign exchange forward contracts as level 2 within the fair value higrarchy There were no transfers
between fajr value hierarchies during the period The notional principal amount of outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts
at 31 March 2019 was EUR 18,000,000 {2018: EUR 14,000,000)

Call option:
Carrying value and Fair value 201¢ 2013
£000 £000
Call option over Douglas Scientific LLC non-contralling interest 12,635 11,737
Derivative asset 12,635 11,737

On 1 Apnl 2016 the Group entered into a call option agreement with the non-controliing interest of Douglas Scientific LLC to
purchase the entire NC1. The option is classified as a non-current derivative asset and changes in value are recorded in the

Income statement.
{b) Financial risk management and impairment of financial assets
The Group is exposed to market risk (including miterest rate and forelgn currency nisk), credit risk and hquidity risk.

The Group has in place a financial nsk management programme that seeks to limit the adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Group that could arise, including monitoring levels of debt finance and related finance costs. Cash flow and
leverage in respect of the Company's banking faciliies are reported monthly to the Beard Given the size of the Group, the
Directors have not delegated the responsibility of monitering financiat risk management to a sub-commitiee of the Board. The
policies set by the Board are implemented by the Group's finance department.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 1s an indication that an asset may be impaired If any indication exists,
or when annuai impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's reccverable amount An asset's
recoverable amount i1s the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Market risk
Market rizk 1s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices Key market risks affecting the Group including inferest rate risk and currency risk Financial instruments affected by

market risk inciude loans and borrowings and deposits

Scitice Gigup Haldings Eimited: |
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019
27. Financial instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk

During the year ended 31 March 2019 all of the Group's bank debt was at floating interest rates The Group moenitors the trends
in interest rates and regularly consults with investors and advisors regarding interest rates The Group has opted to partially fix
USD interest rates and partiaily cap EUR interest rates The Group holds fiuctuating cash balances that earn interest at fluctuating
market rates

Foreigh exchange risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fiuctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates arnsing from various currency
exposures, primatily with respect to Euro, US dollar and the UK pound Foreign exchange risk arises primanly from foreign
acquisitions, foresgn operations, trade payabies and trade receivables held i foreign currencies, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations.

This risk 1s partially mitgated by internally generated cash flows 1n a similar mix of currencies Net risk of exposure to operations
in foreign currencies is managed by the purchase of foreign exchange farward contracts

Credit risk and impairment

Credit risk 1s the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, ieading
to a financial loss The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activiies (ppmarily for trade) and from s financing
activities, including depasits with banks and financiaf institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Cash and receivables credit risk exposuore and management

Provision

Maximum for
amount of doubtful Carrying
exposure debt value
2019 £000 £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 58,976 - £8,976
Trade and other receivables * 61,985 {2,395) 59,590
120,961 {2,395) 118,566

2018

Cash and cash equivalents 41,816 - 41,816
Trade and other receivables * 50,097 {913) 45,184
91,913 (913) 91,000

* Trade and other receivables are stated excluding Prepayments and Accrued income

The majority of the Group's trade receivables are due from large national or multinational companies, or are government backed
where the risk of default is considered low and there 1s limited customer concentration. Quistanding cusiomer receivables are
regularly monitored and any contracts with major customers are generally covered by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance. Individual credit imits are set to minimise the concentration of risk and therefore mitigate financial loss through
potential counterpanty failure.

T LEC Seignce Group ﬁﬂl&i’hg&iﬂim_ited
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

27. Financial instruments (continued)
Credit nsk from balances with banks and financial institutions 1s managed by the Group's treasury department and the credit risk
on iiquid funds and derivative financial instruments 1s considered limited because the counterpariies are banks and financial

institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Allowances for impairment by credit losses

2019 2018
£000 £000
Al start of pericd {813} (852)
Acquisitions (285) -
Movement during the peniod (1,187) (D)
At end of period {2,395) {913)

Liquidity risk
The Group monitors hquidity on an ongeing basis All financial liabilities outstanding at the current penod end are due within one
year and the contractual maturities are the same as the carrying vatue,

The Group's cbiective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibiity through the use of a variety of
barrowing nstruments. The Group assessed the concentration of nsk and concluded it to be low. The table below summarnses

the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Maturity analysis

Within 1 year >5 years Total

2018 £000 £000 £000
Trade and other payables * 97,189 - 97,199
Bank borrowings - 856,226 856,226
Long-term loan notes - 8,277 6,277
97,199 862,503 959,702

Within 1 year >§5 years Total

2018 £000 £000 £000
Trade and other payables * 74,380 - 74,360
Bank borrowings - 674,128 674,128
Long-term loan notes - 5,707 5,707
74,360 679,835 754,195

* Trade and other payables are stated exciuding Social security and other taxes and Deferred consideration

Changes in liahilities arising from financing activities

Foreign
Exchange Changes in
2018 Cash flows Movement Fv Other 2019
£000 £°000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank beorrowings 674,128 169,199 12,899 - - 856,226
Lohg-term loan notes 5,707 - - - 570 6,277
Denvative liability 350 - - 793 - 1,183

680,225 169,198 12,899 793 570 863,686
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at 31 March 2019

27. Financial instruments (continued)

Foreign
Exchange Changes in

2017 Cash flows NMovement FV Other 2018

£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000

Bank borrowings 670,528 21,778 (18,179) - - 674,128
Long-term loan notes 5,188 - - - 519 5,707
Derivative liabilty 399 - - (9} - 390
676,118 21,778 {18,179) {9} 519 680,225

The ‘Other column includes the effect of accrued but net yet paid interest on interest bearing loans and borrowings
(c} Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Group's capial management 1s to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and heaithy capital
sfructure to support its business and maximise shareholder value. In order to achieve this business objective, the Group's capital
management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the bank borrowings There
have been no breaches of the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

The Group monitors capital using a leverage ratio, which is net debt divided by pro farma adjusted EBITDA*

*Earnings (including joint venture) before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, unrealised foreign exchange gains and losses
and material, unusual and non-recurring items, including the pre-acquisition period for businesses acquired during the penod

. £GC Science Group Holdings' timitéd '
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at 31 March 2019
28. Related party transactions

(a) Transactions with KKR, the majority shareholder

2019 2018
£000 £000
Services and closing balance
Management fees 500 500
Debt facility fees 2,466 562
Other services 38 145
Payables closing balance 4 125

{b) Transactions with non-controlling interest ~ Douglas Scientific LLC

Group companies entered into transactions with Douglas Scientific LLC (a 55% controlled subsidiary)

2018 2018
£000 £000
Trading
Sale of goods and services during the period 3,734 2,779
Purchase of goods and services during the period {(11,979) (10,882)
Trade recervable closing baiance 27 275
Trade payables closing balance {6,305) {6,210}
Intercompany loan account
Interest payable 294 258
Closing balance 3,264 4,318

(¢} Transactions with non-controlling interest - Brand Reputation Compiiance Limited

Group companies entered into transactions with Brand Reputation Compliance Limited (2 77 5% controlled subsidiary) and
its subsidiary BRC Trading Limited

2019 2018
£000 £000

Intercompany loan account
Interest payable 298 87
Closing balance 7,365 1,838
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at 31 March 2019
28. Related party transactions (continued)
{d) Transactions with other related party

Group campanies entered into transactions with Airto Ltd, a company where Derek Craston holds a Directorship. Ouring
the prior peniod, purchases have been made at normal market price on an arm's length basis.

2019 2018
£000 £000
Trading
Purchase of services during the perod (9 -

Trade payables closing balance - -

{e) Transactlions with companies owned by KKR

Group companies entered into transactions with other companies owned by KKR. During the peniod, sales and purchases
have been made at normal market price on an arm's length basis

2019 2048
£000 £000
Trading
Sale of gnods and services during the period 42 22
Purchase of goods and services during the period (112} (351)
Trade receivable closing balance 2 2
Trade payables closing balance (17) (38)

29, Ultimate holding company and controiling party
The Company's immediate parent undertaking is Elwy 3 Limited.

The majorty shareholders of LGC Science Group Holdings Limited are KKR Fund Heldings L.P and KKR European Fund {V
L.P. (the "Funds"). Kohlberg Kravis Reoberts & Co. L.P., a registered investment adviser regulated by the United States Securities
& Exchange Commission (Regisiration NO. 90169634) under the U.S Investment Adwisors Act of 1940, acts as a manager for
and on behalf of the Funds Na individual investor in the Funds has more than 25% of the interest in LGC Science Group Limited.
The uttmate parent company of KKR Fund Holdings L.P. and KKR European Fund IV LP. is KKR & Co. L.P., an entity
incorporated in the United States of America.
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30. Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are 1ssued, but not yet effective up to the date of the 1ssuance of the Group's financial
statements are disclosed below The Group intends to adopt these standards, If applicable, when they become effective. The
financial impact of these standards Is not yet known and reasonably estimabile.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 replaces the previous |leases Standards, |1AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations IFRS 16 Leases was 1ssued in
January 2016 and has a mandatory effective date of 1 January 2019, sc will have an effective date of 1 April 2019 for the Group.
Early adoptien is permitted but only if IFRS 15 is also applied.

{FRS 16 establishes principies for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclesure of leases, with the objective of
ensuring that lessees and lessors provide relevant information that faithfully represents those transactions The standard provides
a single lessee accounting model, requinng iessees 10 recognise assets and Nablilities for ail feases uniess the (ease term is 12
months or less or the undetlying asset has a low value Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS
16's approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

31. Details of the investments of the Group

As at 31 March 2019 details of the investments in which the Group holds 20% or more of the nominal value of any class of share

capttal are as follows:

Registered Praportion
aoffice/principal of voting
place of Type of rights and
Subsidiary business shares _ shares held Nature of business

American Proficiency Institute 1) Ordinary 100 Food proficiency testing services

Group Inc

Analytical Reference Materials (2) Ordinary 100 Distribution of analytical reference

International Corp standards

Agquacheck Limited’ (3} Ordinary 100 Dormant

Axolabs GmbH (4) Ordinary 100 Contract devetopment and manufacturing
of oliganucleatide therapeutics.

Berry & Associates, Inc {5) Ordinary 100 Genomics products and services

BioAutomation Corporatien {6) Ordinary 100 Genomics products and services

Biosearch Technologies Inc {7} Ordinary 100 Genomics products and services

Brand Reputation Compliance (3) Ordinary 7.5 Holding company

Limited

BRC Global Standards (8) Ordinary 77.6 Distribution of analytical reference

(Americas) Corporation standards

BRC GS America Inc (9) Qrdinary 7715 Distnbution of analytical reference
standards

BRC Trading Limited (3) Ordinary 775 Distribution of analytical reference
standards

Cardiff Bioanalytical Services (3) Ordinary 100 Dormant

Limited?

Douglas Scientific LLC {10} Ordinary 55 Genomics products and services

Dr Ehrenstorfer GmbH (11) Ordinary 100 Distribution of analytical reference
standards

Focus Forensic (3) Ordinary 100 Dormant

Telecommunications Limitedt

Forensic Alliance Limijted’ (3) Ordinary 100 Dormant

HFL Sport Science Limited” (3) Ordinary 100 Dormant

industrial Anatytical (Proprietary) (12} Qrdinary 100 Distribution of analytical reference

Limited standards

KBiosciences Limited’ (3} Crdinary 100 Dormant

Kirkegaard & Perry Laboratories, {13) Qrdinary 100 Dormant

Inc

LGC (Holdings) Limited (3) Ordinary 100 Holding company

LGC (North West) Limited (3) Ordinary 100 Holding company

LGC {Teddington) Limited (3) Ordinary 100 Holding company

LGC Beteiligungs GmbH (11) Ordinary 100 Holding company

LGC Bio Senate Limited® (3) Ordinary 100 Dormant

LGC Bioresearch Limited?! (3) Ordinary 100 Dormant

LGC Biosearch GmbH {14} Ordinary 100 Genomics products and services

LGC Biosearch technologies A/S {15) Qrdinary 100 Genomics products and services

LGC Coleshill Limited™ (3) Ordinary 100 Dormant

LGC Genomics GmbH (16) Ordmary 100 Genomics products and services

LGC Genomics Holding GmbH (16) Ordinary 100 Helding company

LGC Genomics Limited (3) Ordinary 100 Genomics products and services

LGC Genoimics LLC (1} Ordinary 100 Genamics products and services

T UL BE Sierce Group Holdings Linited [
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LGC Science Group Holdings Limited

Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

31. Detaiis of the investments of the Group (continued)

Registered Proportion
office/principa of voting
| place of Type of rights and
Subsidiary business shares shares held Nature of business

LGC Genomics US Holdings Inc (1) Ordinary 100 Holding company

LGC GmbH {17} Ordinary 100 Manufacture of analytical referance
standards

LGC Group Holdings Limited (3) Ordinary 100 Holding company

LGC Helding GmbH (16) Ordinary 100 Holding company

LGC Investments GmbH (11) QOrdinary 100 Holding company

LGC Investments Limited (3) Ordinary 100 Holding company

LGC Labor GmbH (11) Ordinary 100 Manufacture of analytical reference
standards

LGC Limited {3) Ordinary 100 Chemical and biochemical analysis
consultancy and distribution of analytical
reference standards

LGC North America Inc M Ordinary 100 Holding company

LGC Rhene Inc (1) Ordinary 100 Holding company

LGC SA BBOS Trust (12) Ordinary 100 Black Economic Empowerment Trust

LGC SA ESOP Trust (12) Ordinary 100 Black Economic Empowerment Trust

LGC Scheme Pension Trustee (3) Ordinary 100 Activities auxifiary to insurance and

Limited pension funding

LGC Science (Beijing) Co Limited (18) Ordinary 100 Distribution of analytical reference
standards

LGC Science (Nanjing) Co (19} Ordinary 100 Distribution of analytical reference

Limited standards

LGC Science (Shanghar) Co (20 Qrdinary 100 Distribution of analytical reference

Limited standards

LGC Science and Standards (21) Ordinary 100 Distribution of analytical reference

(India) Private Limited standards

LGC Science Group (Singapore) (22) Ordinary 100 Holding company

Pte Limited

LGC Science Group Limited {3) Ordinary 100~ Holding company

LGC Science Holdings Limited {3) Ordinary 100 Holding company

LGC Science Inc (23) Ordinary 100 Analytical testing services

LGC Science Investments Limited (3 Ordinary 100 Holding company

LGC Science Limited® (3) Ordinary 100 Daormant

LGC Standards (Scuth Africa) {12) Ordinary 100 Holding company

(Proprietary) Limited

LGC Standards Brazil Exportagac (24) Ordinary 100 Distribution of analytical reference

E Importagio Ltda standards

LGC Standards GmbH (11) Qrdinary 100 Distribution of analytical reference
standards

LGC Standards Inc (25) Ordinary 100 Distribution of analytical reference
standards

LGC Standards Sarl (26) Ordinary 106 Dhstribution of analytical reference
standards

LGC Standards SL (27) Qrdinary 100 Distnbution of analytical reference
standards

LGC Standards Sp Z.0.0 (28) Qrdinary 100 Distribution of analytical reference
standards

L.GC Standards Srl (29) Ordinary 100 Distribution of analytical reference

standards




LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

31. Details of the investments of the Group (continued)

Registered Proportion
office/principal of voting
place of Type of rights and
Subsidiary business shares shares held Nature of business

LGC Whirlwind Ltd (3) Ordinary 100 Holding company

Link Technologies Limited (30) Ordinary 100 Genamics products and services

Lucigen Corporation (31) Ordinary 100 Genomics products and services

Maine Standards Company LLC (32) Ordinary 100 Manufacture of analytical reference
standards

MBH Analytical Limited (3) Ordinary 100 Manufacture of certified reference
matertals

Organic Standard Soluticns (33) Ordinary 100 Distnbution of analytical reference

international LLC standards

Prime Synthesis Inc (34) Ordinary 100 Genomics products and services

Project Plasma Holdings (35) Ordinary 100 Holding Company

Carporation

Promochem Limited? (3) Ordinary 100 Dormant

Quality Management Hoidings (3) Ordinary 100 Holding company

Limited?

Quality Management Limited™ (3) Ordinary 100 Dormant

SeraCare Life Sciences, Inc (38) Ordinary 100 Manufacture of certified reference and
clinical diagnostic matenals

Teddington 2 Limited (3) Ordinary 100 Holding company

Thistie Laboratory Services (12) Ordinary 100 Analytical testing services

(Proprietary) Limited

University Diagnostics Limited® (3) QOrdinary 100 Dormant

VHG Labs Inc (37) Ordinary 100 Distnbution of analytical reference
standards

* Directly held by the Company
T Companies exempt from the requirement of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the preparation of accounts under section
394A of the Act.

Statutory instrument exemption

The following subsidiaries are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of accounts under
section 479A of the Act:

. LGC (North West) Limited

» LGC (Teddington) Limited

« LGC Genomics Limited

= LGC Group Holdings Limited

. LGC (Holdings) Limited

e  LGC Investments Limited

. LGC Scheme Pension Trustee Limited
» LGC Science Group Limited

»  LGC Science Holdings Limited

«  LGC Science Investments Limited
«  LGC Whiriwind Limited

« Link Technologies Limited

GC Science Group Holdings Limited

Report and accounts 2019 | °



LGC Science Group Holdings Limited
Notes to the financial statements

at 31 March 2019

31. Details of the investments of the Group (continued)

*  MBH Anaiytical Limited
*  Teddington 2 Limited

The country of incorporation matehes the country in which the registered office/principal place of business is located
Key fo registered office/principal place of business
(1) National Registered Agents, Inc, 160 Greentree Drive, Suite 101, Dover DE 19904, United States
(2) National Registered Agents, Inc, 1021 Main Street, 1150, Houston TX 77002, United States
(3} LGC, Queens Road, Teddington, Middlesex, TW11 OLY, United Kingdom
(4} Fritz-Hornschuch-Strage 8, D-85326 Kulmbach Germany
(5} 2434 Bishcp Circle E, Dexter Michigan, 48130, United States
(6) National Registered Agents Inc, Y01 S Carson St, Ste 200, Carson City, 88701, Nevada, United States
) National Registered Agents, Inc, 818 W Seventh Street, Suite 930, Los Angeles CA 90017, United States
8) Cogency Global Inc 850 New Burton Road Suite 201 Dover DE 19904, United States
9) 15 Martin Street, Suite 202, Milton, ON L8T 2R4
10} 1010 Dale St N, St Paul, MN 55117-5603, USA
11) Mercatorstr 51, 46485 Wesel, Gemany
12} 48 Monte Carlo Crescent, Kyalami Business Park, Kyatami, Gauteng, 1684, Scuth Africa
13) The Corperation Trust Inc, 2405 York Road, Suite 201, Lutherviile, Timonium MD, 21093-2264
14) Sonneberger Strasse 69, 96523 Steinach, Germany
15) Voldbjergvej 16B, 8240, Risskov, Denmark
(16) Ostendstrasse 25, TGS Haus 8, 12453 Berlin, Germany
(17) Louis-Pasteur-Str. 30, 14943, Luckenwalde, Germany
{18) Roorn 110, Unit 2, No 6 Building, No 88 Yark, Kechuang Sixth Street, Beijing China
(19} 5F, Block A5, Hongfeng Science Park, Econiomic and Technelogical Development Zone, Nanjing
(20) Roorn 15778, No 55 Xili Road, Shanghal Free Trade Zone, Shanghai, China
(21} Unit No. 216, Commercial Building Square One, C-2 District Centre, Saket, New Delhi, 110017, India
(22} 50 Raffles Place, #32-01 Singapore Land Tower, Singapore 048623, Singapore
(
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23) Northwest Registered Agent Service, Inc, 1521 Concord Pike, Surte 202, Wilmington DE 19803, United States
24) Avenida Salmao 663, Sala 66, Jardim Aquarius - S&o José Dos Campos, 12246-260 Brazil

{25) Naticnal Registered Agents, Inc, 155 Federai Street, Suite 700, Boston MA 02110, United States

{26) 6 rue Alfred Kastler, 67120 Molsheim, France

{27) Salvador Espnu 58, 08005 Barcelona, Spain

{28) ul M.Kenopnickiei 1, Dziekandw Lesny, 05-092, tomianki, Poland

(29) Via Tintoretto n 5, 20145 Milano, Htaly

(30} 3 Mallard Way, Strathclyde Business Park, Bellshill, Lanarkshire, ML4 3BF

(31} Cogency Glabal, Inc., 901 S Whitney Way, Madison, W, 53711 - 2553

(32} 221 US Route 1, Cumberland Foreside, ME 04110, United States

(33} National Registered Agents Inc., 2 Office Park Court, Columbia SC 29223, United States

(34) 2 New Road, Suite 126, Aston DE 19014, United States

{35) Nafional Registered Agents Inc, 180 Greentree Dnve, Suite 101, Dover, Kent, 19904, Delaware, United States
(38) The Corporation Trust Company Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange ST, Wilmingtor, DE, 19801, United States
(37} Naticnai Registered Agents Inc, 276 Abby Road, Manchester NH 03103, United States




